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GENERAL
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1. GENERAL
INFORMATION

Registered name:
Pan South African Language Board (PanSALB)
Registration number:
N/A
Physical address:
5th Floor Provisus Building, 523 Stanza Bopape, Arcadia, 0083
Postal address:
Private Bag X08, Arcadia 0007
Telephone number:
+27 12 341 9638
Fax number:
+27 12 341 5938
Email address:
communication@pansalb.org
Website address:
www.pansalb.org
External auditors:
Auditor-General of South Africa (AGSA)
Bankers:
ABSA
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2. LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/
ACRONYMS

04

AGSA

Auditor-General of South Africa

BBBEE

Broad-based Black Economic Empowerment

CEO

Chief Executive Officer

CFO

Chief Financial Officer

CI

Corporate Investment

DAC

Department of Arts and Culture

DoE

Department of Education

FSPLC

Free State Provincial Language Committee

GPLC

Gauteng Provincial Language Committee

HR

Human Resources

ICT

Information and Communications Technology

ISS

Isikhungi Sesichazamazwi SesiZulu

MEC

Member of Executive Council

MPLC

Mpumalanga Provincial Language Committee

MTEF

Medium-term Expenditure Framework

NLB

National Language Body

NLU

National Lexicography Unit

NWPLC

North West Provincial Language Committee

PFMA

Public Finance Management Act

PLC

Provincial Language Committee

SASL

South African Sign Language

SCM

Supply Chain Management

SMME

Small, Medium and Micro-enterprises

TR

Treasury Regulations

VPN

Virtual Private Network
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3.STRATEGIC
OVERVIEW

Vision
“A nation that acts intentionally about its
mother languages/tongues while promoting
multilingualism.”
We will know that this vision is realised when:
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

The majority of South Africans can be
addressed in their mother tongue
The majority of South Africans can
speak a minimum of three official
languages other than their mother
tongue
Customers are satisfied
Stakeholders are satisfied
PanSALB is compliant with governance
imperatives
PanSALB is sustainable
Employees are satisfied

Mission
“To provide language products and services that
lead to equitable use of all South African
languages including Khoi, Nama and San
Languages and Sign Language, with a special
emphasis on languages that were previously
marginalised. This will be achieved by
developing, preserving, promoting and protecting
language rights, and fostering respect for
language.”

Values
PanSALB’s interaction with all its
stakeholders is guided by its values. The values
are aligned with the mandate and enable
employees to be passionate about the mandate,
respectful of others and of languages,
accountable, transparent and committed to
discharging the PanSALB mandate. The values
are described below:
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Value

Description

Respect

Showing a positive feeling
and high regard towards
another person or entity

Accountability Taking responsibility for
one’s own actions
Integrity
Transparency

Commitment

Passion
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Demonstrated behaviour
•

Greeting the next person

•

Being civil to the next person

•

Speaking to the person in a tone
that acknowledges the person

•

Taking responsibility for errors
committed

•

Honouring own commitments

Doing the right thing even
when you are not being watched

•

Doing what is right

•

Keeping your promises

Disclosing information or
processes to people who
should be allowed to view or
access the information

•

Respecting the confidentiality of
salary information

•

Giving people access to information
to which they are entitled

•

Focusing on PanSALB’s role and
obligations

•

Rising above personal differen ces
to make PanSALB’s mandate a
priority

•

Being enthusiastic about your role
at PanSALB

•

Being determined to work hard on
your role at PanSALB

•

Going beyond the call of duty

•

Identifying with your role at
PanSALB

•

Being energised by your role at
PanSALB

•

“Be like water flowing along a
natural riverbed. As it gains energy
from the path it's taking , so you
must gain energy as you perform
your role”

Feeling under an obligation
to discharge the mandate
of PanSALB

Having a strong desire to
discharge the mandate
of PanSALB
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Strategic outcome-orientated goals

No.

Strategic objective

Measurable objectives

SO1

Ensure the sustainability of
PanSALB

SO1.1 Ensure prudent financial management
SO1.2 Comply with governance imperatives
SO1.3 Increase PanSALB’s revenue generation

SO2

Deliver language products and
services that create a
conducive environment for
multiple languages

SO2.1 Implement languages framework
SO2.2 Increase the use of different languages
SO2.3 Facilitate the creation of a society that is
knowledgeable about language
SO2.4 Facilitate the development of a national
languages infrastructure
SO2.5 Ensure access to information about a
national languages infrastructure

SO3

Build PanSALB’s capability

SO3.1 Ensure employee satisfaction (people)
SO3.2 Build employee capability (systems and
processes)
SO3.3 Implement systems to enable service
delivery

SO4

Create an effective service
delivery infrastructure

SO4.1 Utilise systems for service delivery
(information technology )
SO4.2 Utilise business processes for service
delivery (business processes)

SO5

Create awareness of language
use

SO5.1 Keep employees aware of PanSALB’s
activities (internal communication)
SO5.2 Achieve stakeholder satisfaction
SO5.3 Promote the use of multiple languages
with a special emphasis on previously
marginalised languages
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4. LEGISLATIVE AND
OTHER MANDATES

Mandate from the Constitution of the
Republic of South Africa
The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa Act No. 108 of 1996 (Section
6(5) (a) and (b) of Chapter 1) mandates the establishment of the Pan South
African Language Board as follows:
A Pan South African Language Board established by national legislation must –
(a) promote, and create conditions for, the development and use of –
(i) all official languages;
(ii) the Khoi, Nama and San languages; and
(iii) sign language; and
(b) promote and ensure respect for –
(i) all languages commonly used by communities in South Africa,
including German,Greek, Gujarati, Hindi, Portuguese, Tamil, Telegu
and Urdu; and
(ii) Arabic, Hebrew, Sanskrit and other languages used for religious
purposes in South Africa.

Mandate from the PanSALB Act No. 59 of
1995 as amended 1999
In terms of the Pan South African Language Board (PanSALB) Act No. 59 of 1995, as
amended, the organisation is mandated to:
a) make recommendations with regard to any proposed or existing legislation,
practice or policy dealing directly or indirectly with language matters at any level
of government, and with regard to any proposed amendments to or the repeal
or replacement of such legislation, practice or policy;
b) make recommendations to organs of state at all levels of government where it
considers such action advisable for the adoption of measures aimed at the
promotion of multilingualism within the framework of the Constitution;
c) actively promote an awareness of multilingualism as a national resource;
d) actively promote the development of the previously marginalised languages;
e) initiate studies and research aimed at promoting and creating conditions for the
development and use of (i) all the official languages of South Africa, (ii) the
Khoe and San languages and (iii) South African Sign Language;
f) promote and ensure respect for all other languages commonly used by
communities in South Africa;
g) advise on the coordination of language planning in South Africa;
h) facilitate cooperation with language planning agencies outside South Africa;
i) establish provincial language committees and national language bodies to
advise it on any language matter affecting a province or a specific language;
and
j) establish national lexicography units to operate as companies limited by
guarantee under section 21 of the Companies Act (No. 61 of 1973), and to
allocate funds to the units for the fulfilment of their functions.

08
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In terms of Section 4 of the PanSALB Act, the Board
is an independent organ of state, subject only to the
Constitution and its founding legislation, and must
perform its duties without fear, favour or prejudice. All
organs of state are enjoined to cooperate with the Board
and may not interfere with its functioning in the execution
of its mandate.
The primary objective of PanSALB is to promote
multilingualism in South Africa by:
•
creating the conditions for the development of
and the equitable use of all official languages
•
fostering respect for and encouraging the use of
other languages in the country
•
encouraging the best use of the country's linguistic
resources, in order to enable South Africans to free
themselves from all forms of linguistic discrimination,
domination and division and to enable them to exercise
appropriate linguistic choices for their own wellbeing
as well as for national development.

Use of Official Languages
Act No. 12 of 2012
The object of the Use of Official Languages Act is:
a)
to regulate and monitor the use of official languages for
government purposes by national government;
b)
to promote parity of esteem and equitable treatment of
official languages of the Republic;
c)
to facilitate equitable access to services and information of
national government; and
d)
to promote good language management by national
government for efficient public service administration and to
meet the needs of the public.
The implementation of the Use of Official Languages Act implies:
•
PanSALB should play an oversight role
•
PanSALB has to comply to the prescripts of the act

Other legislative and policy
mandates
Policy mandates are derived from supporting legislation,
institutional, provincial and national policies. Examples
of the applicable legislation and policies are:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Annual Report for 2014-15 Financial Year - PanSALB

Public Finance Management Act No. 1 of 1999
Public Service Act of 1994
Public Service Regulations 2001 as amended
Department of Labour’s code of good practice in the
workplace
Employment equity plan
Fraud prevention policies
Practice notes issued by National Treasury,
e.g. strategic planning framework
Applicable general public service policies on
procurement/SCM, good governance and
best practice
King III Report on Corporate Governance
Legal and regulatory imperatives for
PanSALB functional areas.
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5. ORGANISATIONAL
STRUCTURE

Executive Authority

PanSALB Board

Risk & Audit
Committee

Remuneration & HR
Committee

Chief Executive
Officer
Board

Management

Exco

Manco

Management
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Language & Technical
Committee

Chairperson
Forum
National
Language
Bodies(NLBs)
x 13

Provincial
Language
Committes(PLCs)
x9

National
Lexicography
Units (NLUs)
x 11
Language Structures

EXECUTIVE

Executive Head:
LANGUAGES
Dr Nomfundo Mali
(till December 2014)

Chief Executive Officer
Dr Rakwena Reginald Mpho Monareng
(from 01 July 2015)

Executive Head:
CORPORATE
SERVICES
Ms Karabo Mbele
(till December 2014)

(Acting) Executive Head:
RESEARCH, MONITORING &
EVALUATION
Dr Daniel Thokoane
(till December 2014)

Executive Head:
REGIONAL MANAGERS
Vacant

(Acting) Chief
Financial Officer CFO
Mr Vukile Mbilini
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BOARD
MEMBERS

Ms Christinah
Mashangu Mayevu

Mr Roger Clifford
White

Dr Paul Hendry
Nkuna

Dr Pule Alexis
Phindane

VICE
CHAIRPERSON
Prof Andreas Meyer
Carstens

Prof Jacobus
Johannes Malan

CHAIRPERSON
Prof Mbulungeni Ronald
Madiba
Mr Hendrik Sebanie
Theys

Mr Jabulane Blose

Dr Zukile Jama

Ms Nonceba Levin

12

Annual Report for 2014-15 Financial Year - PanSALB

6. FOREWORD BY
THE CHAIRPERSON

PROF MBULUNGENI MADIBA

•

•

•
The Pan South African Language Board
(PanSALB) came into existence in terms
of the Pan South African Language
Board Act 59 of 1995, amended in 1999.
As our country celebrates two decades
of democracy, the democratisation of
language use in public and private
spheres continues to pose a challenge.
This report reflects PanSALB’s
achievements in the financial year
2014-15. It further highlights the
challenges and limitations we have
encountered in realising our mandate of
promoting and creating the conditions for
the development and use of all official
languages, particularly our previously
marginalised indigenous languages.
I will start off with the achievements.

•

Achievements
•

PanSALB had been
without a Board of Directors
since 2012 following the
dissolution of the then Board by
the Minister of Arts and Culture.
The new Board was
inaugurated in June 2014 to
provide oversight and strategic

•

direction to the organisation.
The new Board has notched up
several achievements, and one
of them is the appointment of
the Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) for the organisation. For
several years, PanSALB had
been managed by acting CEOs
and this seriously affected the
management and stability of the
organisation. The appointment
of the new CEO is thus an
important achievement as it will
help to bring much needed
stability and direction to the
organisation.
The organisation’s financial
situation has also improved
during the year under review.
When the new Board came into
being, the organisation was
financially bankrupt and was
heavily indebted to service
providers.
The Board has made efforts to
realign the institution to its core
mandate. At the time when the
new Board was put into place,
the organisation was not
fulfilling its core mandate as
most of its structures, such as
the National Language Bodies,
the Provincial Language
Committees and the National
Lexicography Units, were not
functioning effectively due to
lack of funding. Most of these
structures have now been
revived and have started to
perform their core functions.
Another achievement is the
development of the new
Strategic Plan to replace the
Turnaround Strategy which the
new Board found unsuitable for
the organisation’s mandate.
The new Strategic Plan has
been submitted to the
Department of Arts and Culture
for tabling in Parliament.
The new Strategic Plan seeks
to realign the organisation to its
core mandate. It outlines the
vision, mission and values of
the organisation, as well as
strategies designed to promote
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•

•

and create conditions for the
development and use of all
South African languages
including Khoi, San, Nama and
Sign Language. It takes into
account the political, social,
cultural and economic changes
of the past 21 years of
democracy and the new
challenges and opportunities in
respect of the implementation
of our language policy of official
multilingualism.
While we have also tried to
improve the financial
administration of the
organisation, the challenges we
encountered were
insurmountable. To address the
gross financial mismanagement
we found in the organisation,
we requested a Forensic Audit
from the National Treasury and
the report is completed, but it is
still in draft stage.
The collaboration with other
organisations or entities has
also improved. We have
actively participated in the
Forum for the Institutions
Supporting Democracy (FISD)
and even hosted one meeting.

Challenges and future plans
When the new Board took over, it was
shocked by the state in which the
organisation was and the many
challenges it was facing.
The first challenge we encountered was
the vacant executive leadership
positions, such as the CEO and the
Chief Financial Officer (CFO). The Board
only managed to appoint the new CEO
in the new calendar year (with the CEO
only starting on 1 July 2015) as there
was not enough funds to make the
appointment earlier.
The second challenge, which remains a
sore point in this report, is the disclaimer
report of the Auditor-General. While we
have tried to address the issues raised in
the 2013-14 audit report, the gross
financial mismanagement of the previous

13

years, the lack of strong leadership and
the lack of capacity in the finance
department made it impossible for the
organisation to avoid a disclaimer audit
report. The Board has requested the
new CEO and the acting CFO to develop
an action plan to get the organisation out
of disclaimer in the next financial year.
The third challenge is the litigations
which the Board faced after it took the
decision to disregard the contracts of
staff appointed by Mr Zwane. The
litigations are still continuing, and the
Board hopes the matter will be resolved
by the courts soon.
Lastly, the major challenge is getting the
organisation to perform its monitoring of
language policies and their
implementation in public and private
spheres. There is a need for PanSALB
to develop language policy and
language development frameworks to
ensure the promotion of multilingualism
in the country. The Use of Official
Languages Act No. 12 of 2012 provides
a broad macro-framework, but PanSALB
needs to develop language frameworks
for language policy development and the
concomitant language development at
micro-level.

Concluding remarks
Finally, I would like to thank Prof Wannie
Carstens, the Deputy Chairperson, all
Board members, our acting Chief
Executive Officer Adv Z Feni during the
time of transition, the new CEO, Dr RM
Monareng, and the staff for their hard
work and commitment to the
organisation and the promotion of
multilingualism in our country. We are
also grateful for the support we received
from the Ministry and top management
of the Department of Arts and Culture.
We hope to improve dramatically in the
current financial year in order to present
a better report next year.

_________________
Prof Mbulungeni Madiba
Chairperson of the Board
PanSALB
Date: 14 September 2015

The Board is treating the development of
the language policy and language
development frameworks and the
monitoring of the implementation of the
Use of Official Languages Act as top
priorities for the new financial year. The
Use of Official Language Act and
concomitant government departments’
language policies provide an opportunity
for PanSALB to realise its goal of
promoting the development and use of
all official languages including San, Khoi,
Nama and Sign Language in
government domains.
We are confident that by focusing our
effort on promoting the development and
use of all our languages, we will be
contributing to the achievement of the
goals set in the National Development
Plan. With our various structures and
expertise, we are well positioned to
champion the promotion of
multilingualism as a resource for
communication and development in our
country.
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7. CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S OVERVIEW

DR RAKWENA REGINALD
MPHO MONARENG

The key drive of PanSALB in the next
financial year is to give further
expression to our multilingual mandate.
This can be brought about and given
impetus by filling the critical executive
positions.
The appointment of a Language
Executive is a priority that demonstrates
this intent. The Language Division to be
headed by the Language Executive is
the nucleus that determines the strategic
and operational substance and direction
of PanSALB.
The appointment of a Chief Financial
Officer will be a key step towards
establishing prudent institutional
fiduciary and financial management.
A Corporate Services leader is yet
another important position to be filled.
However, like other critical senior
management positions, it depends on
the conclusion of litigations currently
faced by PanSALB.
Along with appointing senior managers,
PanSALB’s plan is to improve control
processes and mechanisms to bring
about profitable coordination of all
institutional structures. The goal is the
efficient and effective execution of
PanSALB’s mandate.
Professional staff development and
human relations improvements are
planned for the next financial year. Of
significance is the plan to express and
establish that PanSALB is indeed Pan
South African by forming alliances and
by collaborating on language matters
beyond South Africa’s borders.

The contribution made by the entire
PanSALB community as reflected in this
report is laudable. It is hoped that the
interplay and coordination of PanSALB
organs in the new financial year will
result in an improved overall
performance to further enhance the
multilingual mandate.

_________________
Dr RRM Monareng
Chief Executive Officer
PanSALB
Date: 14 September 2015

Improved visibility and a tangible
contribution within the country on
language matters are paramount.
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PART B:
SERVICE DELIVERY
INFORMATION

16

PROGRAMME 1
ADMINISTRATION AND
SUPPORT

8. SUB-PROGRAMME:

FINANCE AND BUDGET SERVICE
Purpose: To enable the implementation of PanSALB’s mandate through support with finances, budgeting and the procurement of goods and services.
Strategic objective: To ensure the sustainability of PanSALB (SO1).
Service delivery objectives and indicators: To ensure operation within agreed budget allocations; comply with governance imperatives; deliver finance and budget services.
The finance and budgets service unit achieved the following in the year under review:
• Internal auditors appointed for a period of three years, April 2014
• Internal audit charter approved by the Audit, Risk and Information and Communications Technology (ICT)
Committee
• Internal audit plan approved, internal audit work done and reports submitted to management and the ICT Committee
• Audit, Risk and ICT Committee members advertised for and appointed by the Board, September 2014
• Audit, Risk and ICT Committee charter approved by the Board, February 2015
• Two Audit, Risk and ICT Committee meetings took place
• Budgets drafted and approved by the Board
• Expenditure vs budgets monitored on a monthly basis
• Medium-term Expenditure Framework (MTEF) updated and submitted to Treasury and the Department of Arts and
Culture (DAC)
• Budgets for 11 National Lexicography Units (NLUs) communicated after approval by the Board
• Communicated with 11 NLUs to submit their audited annual financial statements, completed asset register and trial
balance
• Prepared consolidated annual financial statements and submitted to the Auditor-General (AGSA), Treasury and
DAC (29 May 2015) for auditing in terms of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA)
• Risk assessment conducted and recommended by Audit, Risk and ICT Committee, as required by Treasury
Regulations
• Risk register updated, reviewed and approved by the ICT Committee
• Risk framework drafted and approved by the ICT Committee
• Fraud prevention plan drafted and approved
• Monthly grant received and managed
• Irregular and unproductive expenditure updated and disclosed
• Asset register updated
• Action plans drafted to address audit findings
• Cash flow managed
• Unspent monies invested
• Monthly reconciliations undertaken
Challenges: Unresolved labour disputes, understaffing and underfunding.
Future plans: Request additional funding so that we can appoint staff to deliver on the mandate.
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9. SUB-PROGRAMME:

COMMUNICATION AND MARKETING

Purpose: To enable the implementation of PanSALB mandate.
Strategic objectives: To create awareness of language use (SO5).
Measurable objectives:
• Keep employees aware of PanSALB activities (internal communication)
• Deliver marketing and communication services
• Promote the use of languages with a special emphasis on previously
marginalised languages
Service delivery objectives and indicators:
1. Keep employees aware of PanSALB activities (internal communication):
• Monthly internal newsletters were produced to keep staff informed
• Events schedule developed, reviewed and implemented
• The flow of information among employees facilitated to help the
organisation and line function staff to achieve their objectives
2.

Deliver marketing and communication services:
• Designed and placed newspaper advertisements for the appointment of
audit committee members and a Chief Executive Officer
• Produced creative marketing and promotional publications and business
stationery in line with the organisation’s Corporate Identity (CI)
manual (invitation, poster, advertisements, etc.) for the “Free your
language” campaign in collaboration with Unisa and the Dr Neville
Alexander Language Scholarship

3.

Promote the use of languages with a special emphasis on previously
marginalised languages:
• Developed a media liaison plan including social media tools to boost our
brand awareness through International Mother Language Day,
Translation Day, Deaf Awareness Week, Dr Neville Alexander Language
Scholarship

Challenges:
• Static website with outdated technology
• Lack of budget to implement programmes
• Failure to appoint a marketing and communication agency after a tender
was issued
Future
•
•
•

plans:
Increase media coverage
Increase budget
Appoint a marketing and communication agency to provide through the
line marketing and communication services for a period of three years
• Procure a dynamic content management system for website and intranet

18
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10. SUB-PROGRAMME:

INFORMATION, COMMUNICATIONS AND
TECHNOLOGY

Purpose: To enable the implementation of PanSALB’s
mandate through support on finances, budgeting and the
procurement of products and services.
Strategic objectives: To ensure PanSALB’s sustainability.
To provide effective internal financial and accounting
control systems, efficient financial resources management,
financial reporting frameworks, the enhancement of
revenue and the timeous procurement of products and
services in line with the PFMA and Treasury Regulations.
Service delivery objectives and indicators:
•
Appointment of PanSALB internal auditors
through a tender
•
Stock verification in all nine provincial offices and
Head Office
•
Updating of Asset Register (including cell phones
– previously not included)
•
Handling contractual payments and
non-contractual payments from all nine provincial
offices and Head Office
Challenges:
•
Lack of adherence to internal controls and poorly
equipped offices
•
Policies not reviewed as required
•
No provincial office has received stationery or
cleaning materials
•
No advertisement for database
•
Stock verification was done only once, in
February 2015
•
Lack of sufficient funds led to the following
projects being halted:
o
Renewing old assets, e.g. most
computers are outdated and
sometimes hang
o
Upgrading the telephone system to
link all provincial offices to Head Office
by making them line extensions
o
Appointing a service provider via
tender to book air tickets,
accommodation and car hire
Future plans:
•
Improved training of personnel
•
Implementation of policies and internal controls
•
Appointment of service providers in terms of the
Procurement Plan
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11. SUB-PROGRAMME:

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Purpose: To enable the implementation of PanSALB’s mandate through support on
finances, budgeting and the procurement of products and services.
Strategic objectives: To ensure PanSALB’s sustainability. To provide effective
internal financial and accounting control systems, efficient financial resources
management, financial reporting frameworks, the enhancement of revenue and the
timeous procurement of products and services in line with the PFMA and Treasury
Regulations.
Service delivery objectives and indicators:
•
Appointment of PanSALB internal auditors through a tender
•
Stock verification in all nine provincial offices and Head Office
•
Updating of Asset Register (including cell phones – previously not
included)
•
Handling contractual payments and non-contractual payments from all
nine provincial offices and Head Office
Challenges:
•
Lack of adherence to internal controls and poorly equipped offices
•
Policies not reviewed as required
•
No provincial office has received stationery or cleaning materials
•
No advertisement for database
•
Stock verification was done only once, in February 2015
•
Lack of sufficient funds led to the following projects being halted:
o
Renewing old assets, e.g. most computers are outdated and
sometimes hang
o
Upgrading the telephone system to link all provincial offices to
Head Office by making them line extensions
o
Appointing a service provider via tender to book air tickets,
accommodation and car hire
Future plans:
•
Improved training of personnel
•
Implementation of policies and internal controls
•
Appointment of service providers in terms of the Procurement Plan
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PROGRAMME 2
LANGUAGE
SERVICES

12. SUB-PROGRAMME:
LANGUAGE IN EDUCATION

Purpose:
• To coordinate the development and delivery of language products and services to create a conducive
environment for languages
• To create conditions for the development and promotion of mother tongue education in all official languages,
especially in the previously marginalised languages
• To monitor and evaluate curriculum and language in education policy development and implementation
Objectives:
Financial constraints posed a serious problem to the operations of the unit since no budget was initially allocated to
Language in Education. Nevertheless, objectives were achieved where possible.
1.

Create awareness of the value of mother tongue

Following the Board meeting held on 5 February 2015, the Acting CEO and the Board allocated R540 000 to the Language
in Education unit.
The budget was allocated for the project implementation of the International Mother Language Day, which is one of the
flagship projects in the promotion of mother tongue in the previously marginalised languages (including Khoi and San
languages and South African Sign Language).
The Language in Education unit allocated each province an amount of R60 000 for the celebrations.
The theme for 2015 was “Inclusion in and through education: language counts”. In order to promote uniformity, this became
the theme for all the provinces although implementation differed from province to province. Although different approaches
were followed the main theme was inclusion in and through education, thus indicating that language counts.
Most provinces organised and celebrated the event as joint ventures. The Language in Education unit coordinated the
events.
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The following table indicates how the celebrations were scheduled per province:

International Mother Language Day Celebrations: 2015
No.

Province

Venue

Date

Stakeholders and
collaborations

1

Eastern Cape

No celebration due to logistical challenges

2

Free State

President Hotel

20 February 2015

Department of Arts and
Culture; Free State
Department of Basic
Education

3

Gauteng

House of Glory
Zone 14;
Sharpeville
Community Hall

20, 21 February 2015

Gauteng Department of
Education Sedibeng
East District; Emfuleni
Local Municipality;
Sedibeng District
Municipality;
Inhlanganiso Writers’
Association

4

KwaZulu-Natal

Oval Stadium
(Kokstad)

22 February 2015

No separate
celebration; joined
event organised by the
Department of Arts and
Culture

5

Limpopo

Waterberg
District;
Mankweng District

21, 25, 27 February 2015

Department of Arts and
Culture; Department of
Basic Education

6

Mpumalanga

Kwa Mhlanga

26 February 2015

Department of Arts and
Culture; Mpumalanga
Department of Basic
Education

7

North West

Orion Hotel

20 February 2015

Department of Arts and
Culture; North West
Department of
Education

8

Northern Cape

Kimberley

23-28 February 2015

Department of Basic
Education; Department
of Arts and Culture

9

Western Cape

Cape Town Lodge
Hotel

27 February 2015

Department of Basic
Education; five
institutions of higher
learning

Technical support was provided to the provinces and PanSALB structures in the form of the provision and
interpretation of the annual theme, as well as management and coordination of the administration (in liaison with
Supply Chain Management and Finance) at the national level.
Technical support was also provided for presentations in the provinces (e.g. the presentation made in North West
Province). The Top Language Achievers in matriculation examinations were recognised and rewarded in some
provinces (e.g. in North West Province, in partnership with the Department of Arts and Culture).
The events managed to promote the previously marginalised languages, although more
resources are needed to make a notable impact in future.
2.

Provide advice on language policy and curriculum development for all official
languages including Khoi and San languages and South African Sign language (SASL)
In the period under review the Language in Education unit served in an advisory
capacity on the Curriculum Management Team for SASL Curriculum review and
development. Together with other stakeholders, we provided technical support to the
Department of Basic Education on behalf of the Board in this regard.
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We assisted in organising the consultative stakeholders’ meetings with the Curriculum
Management Team to create awareness of and promote the curriculum development
process among deaf community stakeholders.
We attended meetings organised by the National Commission of UNESCO in South Africa to discuss
language in education developments nationally and internationally.
3.

Foster equitable use of and respect for languages used by communities in South Africa

The Language in Education unit developed the Bursary Policy document to create conditions for the
development of all official languages through bursary awards.
The Top Language Achievers project was also initiated by the Language in Education unit for this purpose.
No budget was allocated to the Language in Education unit and that affected implementation of the
project and the recognition of top achievers.
4.

Establish and maintain strategic partnerships and networks

Cooperation was strengthened and established with various stakeholders such as the British Council and the
Directorate for Teacher Development.
Project implementation was impossible due to financial constraints.
Summary of achievements:
Although no budget was allocated to the Language in Education unit, we managed to achieve the following:
• Provided support to strategic partners by giving advice about policy and curriculum development and review
• Served in the Curriculum Management Team for the development of the SASL curriculum
• Provided support and advice on the development and review of language in education policies by the Department
of Education
• Monitored language in education policy implementation.
• We continued to support the Department of Basic Education in piloting the Incremental Introduction of African
Languages Policy (IIAL) in schools. The policy is in line with the Board’s objective of promoting the use of
mother tongue in schools
• Celebrated the PanSALB flagship project of International Mother Language Day
• Developed a tool to audit the availability of material in school libraries
• Engaged in national and international discussions about the promotion of mother tongue (e.g. in
National Commission of UNESCO in South Africa meetings)
• Developed a Bursary Policy that promotes the previously marginalised languages
• Initiated and introduced the African Language Top Achievers Project awards
• Made presentations in external and internal stakeholder meetings and workshops to create conditions
for the development and promotion of the previously marginalised languages through language in
education
Challenges:
•
•
•

Lack of financial resources: identified projects could not be implemented because no budget was
allocated
It was only in February 2015 that a budget was allocated for the celebration of International Mother
Language Day
The allocated budget does not cover national celebrations as well as the implementation of other
envisaged projects

Future plans:
•
•
•
•

Implementation of the Top Achievers Project
National and provincial celebrations of International Mother Language Day
Creative writing workshops
Auditing the availability of material in libraries
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13. SUB-PROGRAMME:
DICTIONARY DEVELOPMENT

Purpose: To create conditions for the development of all South African official
languages.
Strategic objectives: Oversight reports on the status of dictionary compilation.
Service delivery objectives and indicators: Achievements by NLUs during
2014-15:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Isikhungi Sesichazamazwi SesiZulu (ISS) – revision of the Bilingual
Dictionary (English-isiZulu)
Ngula ya Xitsonga – (i) Xitsonga Bilingual Children’s Dictionary for Grade 7
(ii) Xitsonga Bilingual Terminology Dictionary project
IsiXhosa – (i) Specialised Dictionary for Teachers and Learners,
Intermediate and Senior Phases (ii) Concise Trilingual Dictionary abridged
(iii) Mathematics and Science Pedagogic Dictionary completed
Silulu Sesiswati – (i) Tinyoni Southern Africa Bird Book (ii) Monolingual
Dictionary (ii) Bilingual Dictionary (English-Siswati), A-Z 13 892 lemmas
IsiNdebele – Trilingual Dictionary (English-isiNdebele-Afrikaans)
Sesotho sa Leboa – (i) cleaning of online edition of Sesotho sa Leboa
Dictionary (ii) compiling second volume of Sesotho sa Leboa Bilingual
Dictionary
Sefala sa Setswana – compiling Dictionary of Proverbs and Idioms.
DSAE (Dictionary for South African English) – (i) publishing unrevised 1st
edition of DSAEHist online (ii) revised the 1st edition of DSAEHist
Sesiu sa Sesotho – compiled Primary Dictionary
Tshivenda – (i) revised Mathivha-Milubi-Madadzhe (MMM) Dictionary (ii)
reviewed Thalusamvelele ya Tshivenda (Cultural Dictionary)
Afrikaans – published (i) Volume XIV of the WAT (ii) Volume XV of the WAT
(iii) Electronic WAT volumes I to XIV (iv) Etimologiewoordeboek van
Afrikaans (v) Lexikos 23

Challenges:
•
Insufficient support staff for NLUs’ managers and offices
•
Lack of infrastructure for NLUs, e.g. no 3G since August 2013, therefore
unable to email documents when working out of office in the provinces
•
Legislative sections governing NLUs are obsolete
•
The term of office of members of NLUs’ Boards of Directors (BoD) expired
in November 2012
•
Absence of a viable, robust dictionary compilation monitoring tool, namely
the National TshwaneLex Server
•
The Silulu Sesiswati, the Isikhungi Sesichazamazwi SesiZulu and the
Sefala sa Setswana have had no appropriate accommodation since 2013
•
The current financial grant for the NLUs is not sufficient for the mammoth
task they are faced with
•
Exodus of staff members as well of BoD members of NLUs due to the
current financial status of the NLUs resulting in under-staffing, e.g. Silulu
Sesiswati has no Editor-in-Chief
Future plans:
•
To motivate for a higher grant for NLUs
•
To motivate for more staff for head office and all the NLU offices
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14. SUB-PROGRAMME:
PROVINCIAL LANGUAGE
COMMITTEES (PLCs)

Purpose: To ensure the promotion and creation of conditions for the
development and use of all official languages with emphasis on previously
marginalised languages including Khoi, Nama and San languages and Sign
Language, as well as fostering the promotion of respect for all languages
commonly used in South Africa.
Service delivery objectives and indicators: Parliament established the Pan South
African Language Board (PanSALB) as a statutory body in terms of the PanSALB Act, No.
59 of 1995, charging it with the statutory obligation to see to the implementation of the
principle of multilingualism.
The PanSALB Act, Section 8(8) (a), empowers the Pan South African Language Board to
establish provincial language committees (PLCs) as its advisory structures. There is one PLC
(or interim PLC) per province. The PLC consists of representative(s) of each (designated) official
language in the province, selected proportionately to the number of speakers in the province.
PLCs may include South African Sign Language (SASL), heritage and possibly Khoi, Nama and
San languages.
Province

Legislative framework

Status

Comments

1.

PanSALB Act No. 59 of 1995:
and Norms and Rules (Board
Notice 92 of 2005)

Partially
reconstituted
(eight
nominees
interviewed)

70% milestone
achievement.

PanSALB Act No. 59 of 1995
and Norms and Rules (Board
Notice 92 of 2005)
PanSALB Act No. 59 of
1995 and Norms and Rules
(Board Notice 92 of 2005)
PanSALB Act No. 59 of
1995 and Norms and Rules
(Board Notice 92 of 2005)

Duly
reconstituted

Follow-up sessions
are being carried out
with the provincial
Department of Arts
and Culture through
the provincial office.
100% milestone
achievement.

Duly
reconstituted

100% milestone
achievement.

Interim
structure
in place

20% milestone
achievement.

Eastern Cape PLC

2.

Free State PLC

3.

Gauteng PLC

4.

KwaZulu-Natal
PLC

Annual Report for 2014-15 Financial Year - PanSALB

Follow-up sessions
are being carried out
with the provincial
Department of Arts
and Culture through
the provincial office.
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Legislative framework
Province
5. Limpopo PLC

6.

Mpumalanga
PLC

7.

Northern Cape
PLC

Legislative framework
Northern Province Languages
Act No. 7 of 2000

8.

North West PLC

9.

Western Cape
PLC

Challenges:
•
•

Status
Interim structure
in place

Comments
20% milestone
achievement.

PanSALB Act No. 59 of 1995
and Norms and Rules (Board
Notice 92 of 2005)
PanSALB Act, No. 59 of 1995
and Norms and Rules (Board
Notice 92 of 2005)

Duly
reconstituted

Follow-up sessions
are being carried out
with the provincial
Department of Arts
and Culture through
the provincial office.
100% milestone
achievement

Interim structure
in place

20% milestone
achievement.

PanSALB Act, No. 59 of 1995
and Norms and Rules (Board
Notice 92 of 2005)
Western Cape Languages
Act, No. 13 of 1998

Duly
reconstituted

100% milestone
achievement.

Duly
reconstituted
(1 September
2012 to
31 August 2015)

100% milestone
achievement.

Follow-up sessions
are being carried out
with the provincial
Department of Arts
and Culture through
the provincial office.

The Western Cape
Provincial Parliament’s
Standing Committee
on Cultural Affairs and
Sport in compliance
with section 7 of the
Western Cape
Languages Act (Act
13 of 1998), has
invited the general
public to nominate
suitable persons as
members of the
Western Cape
Language Committee
by no later than 16:00
on 27 September 2015.

Financial restrictions hamper service delivery to the 60 million people in the
linguistic community of South Africa
Political milieu in which PanSALB and its structures operate, e.g. recent
reshuffling and new appointments of political office bearers mean that newly
appointed political heads have to be engaged anew for language support

Recommendations:
•
Adequate funding that will position PanSALB among other institutions supporting
democracy
•
Effective management of the political milieu, e.g. the CEO or Chairperson of the
Board addressing the Minister and Member of Executive Council (MEC) for support
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15. SUB-PROGRAMME:

NATIONAL LANGUAGE BODIES (NLBs)

Purpose: To create conditions for the development of all South African official languages.
Strategic objective: Oversight reports on the status of dictionary compilation.
Service delivery objectives and indicators: The NLBs Division could not set targets for the financial year
because no funds were allocated to it. For the same reason the 13 National Language Bodies and the Division
could not plan or implement key projects for the year.
Only the isiZulu NLB was able to implement projects, which were initiated and funded by the University of
KwaZulu-Natal. Verification and authentication of terminologies were undertaken for Accounting and Economics;
Architecture; Computer Literacy; Anatomy; and Law.
Nevertheless the Division achieved the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Provided support to external stakeholders regarding Revised Spelling and Orthography Rules
Advised stakeholders regarding the roles and functions of NLBs as well as language development and
use
Provided support to the Executive Head, Languages on drafting the Annual Operational Plan for the
Languages Unit
Participated in meetings of the Curriculum Management Team of the Department of Basic Education
regarding the development of the SASL Curriculum Grades 1 to 12
On 15 July 2014, at the induction of the Gauteng PLC, made a presentation to the PLC on the role of
NLBs and the importance of cooperation between NLBs and PLCs
Participated in the Translation Day celebration on 26 September 2014 hosted by the Department of Arts
and Culture.

Challenges:
• Non-availability of funding made the NLBs Division and the NLBs ineffective
• Ineffective NLB pose the risk that PanSALB and its structures will lose credibility because of an inability
to fulfil its mandate
• Staff and become demoralised
Future plans: Facilitate the process for the revision of Norms and Rules for NLBs. In addition:
1.

Language standardisation
• Conduct workshops or consultative meetings on the Revised Spelling and Orthography Rules (2008
edition) for the nine formerly marginalised languages
• Prepare to launch Revised Spelling and Orthography Rules in 2020
• Plan and start developing Spelling and Orthography Rules for Khoi and San languages and SASL
• The Afrikaans NLB will work on the revision of the Woordelys en Spelreëls in preparation for the launch
of a centenary edition in 2017

2.

Terminology development and lexicography, in partnership with various stakeholders
• Authentication of Agricultural Term Lists by the Sepedi/Sesotho sa Leboa, Tshivenda and
Xitsonga NLBs (2015-16)
• Verify and authenticate Measurement Units from the National Metrology Institute of South Africa
(NMISA) (2015-16)
• Verify and authenticate at least two terminology lists per year (at least 10 verified and
authenticated terminologies by 2020)

3.

Translation and interpreting, in partnership with various stakeholders
• Monitor the quality of translation and interpreting services (2016-20)
• Provide training to translators and interpreters in languages including SASL (2015)
• Provide training to translators and interpreters in the judiciary in languages including SASL
(2016-20)
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16. SUB-PROGRAMME:

LITERATURE AND MEDIA

Purpose: Management and facilitation of the creation of conditions to
promote multilingualism; development of previously marginalised
languages through literature and media in these languages. This entails:
•
•
•
•

Preserving and promoting South Africa’s literary heritage and
media in previously marginalised languages
Inculcating a culture of reading
Providing support to authors and their guilds or associations
Supporting internal and external stakeholders as well as other role-players

Strategic objectives:
•
Create awareness of language use by preserving and promoting the wealth
of South Africa’s literary heritage and media
•
Manage, coordinate and facilitate the provision of technical advice and
support to authors, structures and other role-players and stakeholders
•
Develop policies and create conditions for increased publishing of quality
materials
•
Comply with governance imperatives
Service delivery objectives and indicators: No budget was allocated to Literature and
Media. However, we provided support to stakeholders, authors, authors’ associations, reading
clubs and educational departments. We supported the development of literature and media in
all languages, especially the previously marginalised ones, and supported all initiatives that
encourage creative writing and a culture of reading.
Overall achievements:
•
Established and launched 29 school-based reading clubs in Limpopo
(Vhembe District)
•
Developed guidelines for reading clubs
•
Supported individuals authors
•
Designed template for auditing available literary material in libraries
•
Made presentations to support stakeholders
Challenges:
•
More support for the National Writers Guild of South Africa (NAWGSA) is
•
Inadequate funding
Future plans:
•
A creative writing workshop for isiNdebele
•
A copyright workshop for authors (Tshivenda, Sesotho sa Leboa and
Xitsonga)
•
A creative writing workshop in a correctional centre yet to be identified
•
Development of basic guidelines for budding authors
•
Literary awards
•
Workshops for authors in the newly adapted curriculum (CAPS)
•
Social media publishing programme
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PROGRAMME 3
PROVINCIAL
OFFICES

17. SUB-PROGRAMME:

FREE STATE PROVINCIAL OFFICE
Purpose: To provide strategic management, leadership and coordination of PanSALB’s mandate at the provincial and local
level and ensure implementation and monitoring of multilingualism as well as the use of official languages.
Strategic objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Ensure the development and implementation of language policies
Promote the use and development of languages in the province
Monitor the promotion, use and development of languages in the province
Develop and implement multilingualism advocacy programmes
Establish strategic partnerships with the relevant local and provincial stakeholders
Provide administrative and secretarial support, planning and coordination for PanSALB structures in the province

Service delivery objectives and indicators:
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

•

We made additional inputs into the Free State Provincial Government (FSPG) Language Policy. The Department of
Sport, Arts, Culture and Recreation (SACR) intends to launch the policy in the next financial year.
Municipalities are awaiting the passing of the FSPG Language Policy so that they can use it as a guide. At its
invitation, we assisted Mohokare Local Municipality in drafting its own language policy; the process is now with
Council to ratify.
Lack of funding constrained our promotion of the use and development of languages in the province. This meant that
we relied on invitations from other organisations, entities and educational institutions to fulfil this function. National
and community radio stations (Setsoto FM and Lesedi FM) assisted in promoting languages.
Lack of funds and human resources made monitoring the promotion of the use and development of languages in the
province impossible.
We relied on funds from the SACR to implement some multilingualism advocacy programmes. We made school
visits to award the learners and their educators in the Free State their gifts and certificates as part of the Free State
Provincial Language Committee (FSPLC) annual Matric Well-done Function, which rewards top-performing
language learners in the province.
Thanks to the FSPLC, we hosted a Multilingual Public Speaking Competition in Harrismith where learners debated
in their respective home languages.
We also hosted a successful International Mother Language Day Celebration workshop for language educators in
Mangaung Metro/Bloemfontein. We successfully lobbied the Hon MP and Member of the Arts and Culture Portfolio
Committee SP Tsoleli to attend and give a message of support during this event. Funds from the FSPLC and from
PanSALB Head Office – Language in Education Focus Area – helped to make this event a reality.
We maintained strategic partnerships with local and provincial stakeholders (the South African Human Rights
Council, Public Protector and Independent Communications Authority of South Africa) by attending their meetings
and participating in their activities. We also attended and made inputs at a Provincial Forum for Institutions
Supporting Democracy (FISD) meeting. It was held in Ficksburg on 22 September 2014 with the Forum of Heads of
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•

•

Departments (FOHOD), Setsoto Local
Municipality. Members of FISD were introduced
to FOHOD, a presentation was made and
questions from FOHOD responded to.
We continue to maintain sound partnerships with
and attend the events of
DAC – Terminology Development Workshop –
and the FS Deaf Association, as well as
hosting the International Translation Day
Celebration in collaboration with the SACR
on 4 October in Bloemfontein.
We hosted a successful FSPLC meeting at
Bloem Spa Hotel and Conference Centre
on 26 March 2015 in Bloemfontein. The FSPLC
hosted two meetings instead of the
four stipulated in the PLC Norms and Rules,
mainly because of lack of funds from
PanSALB. Funds donated by SACR to the
FSPLC were used to host these two
meetings. No Sesotho NLB meeting was hosted
in this financial year due to lack of
funds.

Challenges:
•

•

•

Lack of budget for the FSPLC and Sesotho NLB
in this financial year hampered
planning and demoralised members of these
structures
Lack of budget for the Provincial Office also
demoralised staff, particularly with basic
office resources lacking and the IT infrastructure
malfunctioning
Without a budget allocation it is impossible to
meet the objectives of the programme

Future plans:
•

•
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To hold meetings and execute the projects of the
FSPLC and Sesotho NLB as
prescribed. This will depend on whether there is
any budget allocation from PanSALB
Head Office to enable us to fulfil our mandate
To run an efficient, fully resourced Provincial
Office pending the availability of funds
from PanSALB Head Office
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18. SUB-PROGRAMME:
GAUTENG PROVINCIAL OFFICE

Purpose: To coordinate the provision of support services to all structures of
PanSALB in the province.
Strategic objectives: To deliver language products and services to create a conducive
environment for languages; to create awareness of language use.
Service delivery objectives and indicators:
1. Provincial coordination services
•
The Gauteng Provincial Language Committee was reconstituted and inducted in
July 2014
•
In collaboration with the Department of Sports, Arts, Culture and Recreation (DSACR),
we hosted a provincial language indaba on 24 October 2014
•
We collaborated with DSACR to host the Gauteng Provincial Language Committee
(GPLC) strategic meeting in March 2015
2.

Creating awareness of language use
•
Celebrated the 2015 International Mother Language Day in the form of a gala dinner on
20 February 2015 at Sebokeng to honour language activists
•
Celebrated the Read Aloud Day on 4 March 2015 at Musengavhadzimu Primary School
•
In collaboration with DSACR, held consultation meetings with the provincial state law
advisers to discuss the Use of Official Languages Act in Gauteng

Challenges:
•
Lack of funding for projects, meetings and technical support
•
Delay in application by Gauteng of the Use of Official Languages Act
•
Outdated computer software for the Language Practitioner and Office Administrator
•
Due to lack of funds the English NLB could not hold a single meeting and failed to publish
its multilingualism booklet as planned
Future plans:
•
Hold four GPLC quarterly meetings
•
Hold three English NLB quarterly meetings
•
Host consultative workshops at five Gauteng regions on Gauteng’s
application of the Use of Official Languages Act
•
Host Multilingual Debate in Gauteng Schools in collaboration with the
Gauteng Department of Education (GDE) and DSARC
•
Host two language awareness campaigns
•
Publish the English NLB multilingualism booklet
•
Celebrate Deaf Awareness Month
•
Host the Gauteng Deaf Schools Debate
•
Celebrate International Translation Day
•
Ensure that the Use of Official Languages Act is implemented in Gauteng
•
Celebrate International Mother Language Day
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19. SUB-PROGRAMME:

KWAZULU-NATAL PROVINCIAL OFFICE

The PanSALB KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Office administers the Provincial Language
Committee (PLC) and the isiZulu National Language Board (NLB).
1.

Provincial Language Committee

Purpose:
• Monitor the use of the designated languages by the provincial government
• Make recommendations to the Member of the Executive Council (MEC), the
legislature and local authorities in the province regarding proposed or
existing legislation, practice and policy directly or indirectly dealing with
language
• Actively promote the principle of multilingualism
• Actively promote the development of previously marginalised indigenous
languages
• Advise the MEC on matters in or affecting the province with regard to
designated languages
Strategic objectives:
• Create awareness of language use
• Monitor the existence and implementation of the language policy in all district
municipalities and departments and identify challenges experienced by them
• Celebrate international calendar events
• Run advocacy campaigns on linguistic rights
• Hold Imbizo to inform communities about their linguistic rights
• Promote International Deaf Awareness Month
• Promote South African Sign Language (SASL)
• Hold provincial language Indaba
Service delivery objectives and indicators:
Although the PLC’s term of office had expired, the office ensured that the following
work was done:
• A monitoring letter was sent to all municipalities (except three that could not
be reached) enquiring about their implementation of multilingualism. Only
five municipalities responded
• Collaborated with other stakeholders to ensure that the Deaf Awareness
Campaign was a success
• Collaborated with other structures to ensure that the International Mother
Tongue Celebration was a success
Challenges:
• Financial constraints hampered the PLC in initiating projects
• Expiry of the PLC interim structure term of office
Future plans: To implement the projects identified
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2.

National Language Bodies

Purpose:
• Initiate advice to the Board in the form of written
recommendations aimed at empowering, promoting and
developing language
• Be the final quality control authority on all matters pertaining to
language including standardisation and orthography
• Produce signs and spelling rules of the language concerned
Strategic objectives:
1.
Deliver language products and services to create a
conducive environment for languages
•
Develop spelling and orthography rules
•
Publish and launch Izwi LoMzukazwe journal
•
Creative work article and plenary meetings for the
launch in honour of Mr MA Khumalo
2.

Create awareness of language use
•
Resuscitate the policy governing publications written
in isiZulu
•
Audit implementation of national language policy
based on Language in Education Policy 2009
•
Compile a database of books prescribed at schools;
check isiZulu content; verify and authenticate books
•
Literature development workshops and campaign
through stakeholders Indaba (DoE; National Heritage
Council; DAC; USIBA writers guild)

Service delivery objectives and indicators:
None of the programmes listed under strategic objectives was
implemented. However, thanks to stakeholders carrying the cost, the
IsiZulu NLB was able to verify and authenticate terminology, as follows:
• Nursing terminology authentication, 24-26 February 2014
• Accounting and Economics terminology authentication at
PanSALB offices, 26-30 May 2014
• Architecture and Computer Literacy terminology verification,
8-11 July 2014
• Anatomy terminology verification, 2-5 September 2014
• Law and Architecture terminology authentication, 16-19
September 2014
• Anatomy terminology standardisation, 1-5 December 2014
• Environmental Studies terminology verification at Coastlands
(Ridge), 5 -7 May 2015
Challenges: Budget constraints hampered implementation of the
projects planned by the isiZulu NLB.
Future plans: Implementing the projects previously planned, as they
are part of continuous programmes.
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20. SUB-PROGRAMME:

LIMPOPO PROVINCIAL OFFICE

Purpose: To coordinate the provision of support services to all structures of PanSALB in the province.
Strategic objectives: To deliver language products and services to create a conducive environment
for language; to create awareness of language use.
Service delivery objectives and indicators:
1. Provincial coordination services
• Established a Reading Club at Modimolle Correctional Centre, 4 May 2014. The purpose of establishing
reading clubs is to encourage inmates to read books, especially indigenous language books
• Established a Reading Club at Thohoyandou Correctional Centre, 22 May 2014
• Established a Reading Club at Polokwane Correctional Centre, 11 June 2014
• Hosted a Reading and Writing Competition sponsored by Kalahari Publishers at Man’ombe Circuit,
28 May 2014. The PanSALB Provincial Office awarded learners with certificates of participation, and
winners and the hosting circuit with bilingual dictionaries and the PanSALB Orthography and Spelling
Rules of 2008
2.

Creating awareness of language use
• Celebrated the 2015 International Mother Language Day in two districts: at Makgoka High School on
25 February 2015 and at Pula-Madibogo Primary School on 27 February – both in Capricorn District – and
at Mookgopong Primary School, Waterberg District, on 26 February, in collaboration with the Department
of Sport, Arts and Culture (DSAC)
• Celebrated World Book Day in collaboration with Thulamela Municipality and DSAC on 23 April 2014 at
Thulamela Library
• Hosted Deaf Awareness Campaign at Mountainview High School, Ga-Makanya Clinic and Mankweng Police
Station on 17 September 2014. The purpose of hosting deaf awareness campaigns was to create awareness
of South African Sign Language and also to celebrate Deaf Awareness Month
• Hosted Deaf Awareness Campaign at Polokwane Police Station, Polokwane Provincial Hospital and
Polokwane Correctional Centre on 19 September 2014
• Hosted Deaf Awareness Campaign at Rethabile Clinic and Polokwane Home Affairs on 22 September 2014
• Hosted Deaf Awareness Campaign at Hwiti High School on 26 September 2014

Challenges:
• Office equipment e.g. computers is old and dysfunctional which hampers work effectiveness
• No funds for a PanSALB pool car
• No meetings were held by three NLBs and the Limpopo PLC due to financial constraints
Future
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

plans:
Celebrate International Mother Language Day
Celebrate International Translation Day
Celebrate Deaf Awareness Month
Launch Linguistic Human Rights Campaign
Host workshops for Xitsonga and Sepedi/Sesotho sa Leboa NLBs on orthography and spelling rules
Host a provincial language conference
Host reading and writing competitions
Conduct school and community outreach programmes
Establish language units in government departments
Hold three meetings for the Tshivenda NLB, three for the Xitsonga NLB and three for the
Sepedi/Sesotho sa Leboa NLB
• Induct a new Limpopo PLC
• Hold four PLC meetings
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21. SUB-PROGRAMME:

MPUMALANGA PROVINCIAL OFFICE

Purpose: To coordinate the provision of support services to all structures of
PanSALB in the province.
Strategic objectives: To deliver language products and services to create a conducive
environment for languages; to create awareness of language use.
Service delivery objectives and indicators:
1.

2.

•

•

•
•
•
•

Provincial coordination services
Mpumalanga Provincial Language Committee (MPLC) meeting at Bella Done Hotel,
Emalahleni: 01 November 2014
Creating awareness of language use
Meeting with the Mpumalanga Department of Education (DoE) at PanSALB
Mpumalanga Provincial Office, 21 May 2014. The purpose of the meeting was to
create a working partnership with the Department and to discuss the formation
of a Language Teachers Association
Meeting with the DoE Languages Head and the curriculum implementers,
9 September 2014. The aim of the meeting was to introduce PanSALB to the
curriculum implementers
Celebrated 2015 International Mother Language Day at Nkangala District, Vezubuhle
Community Hall, 26 February 2015
Attended a book launch hosted by Isiyalo Writers Association, 18 July 2014
Hosted Mpumlanga Language Act awareness events in collaboration with the
Department of Culture, Sport and Recreation (DCSR): 11 September 2014 at
Mbombela District Municipality; 28 November 2014 at Nkangala District Municipality; 5
February 2015, for all government departments, at Nutting House Lodge, Mbombela

Challenges:
• With no budget for PanSALB structures, only MPLC could meet as it received a grant
from DCSR
• MPLC grant was transferred late due to a delay of documents from PanSALB, e.g.
financial statement and expenditure reports
• No funds for a PanSALB pool car; therefore other invitations were not honoured
• Office equipment, e.g. computers, is old and dysfunctional, which hampers work
effectiveness
• Shortage of staff
Future plans:
• Celebrate all PanSALB calendar events in collaboration with other relevant institutions,
e.g. DoE, DCSR, DeafSA
• Linguistic human rights campaign
• Popularise Siswati and isiNdebele Orthography and Spelling Rules
• Workshop for writers
• Host reading and writing competitions
• School and community outreach programmes
• Establish language units at municipalities and government departments
• Hold three NLB meetings for Siswati and three for isiNdebele
• Implement all outstanding projects
• Hold four PLC meetings
• Establish a stakeholder forum
• Establish a Language Teachers Association
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22. SUB-PROGRAMME:

NORTH WEST PROVINCIAL OFFICE

Purpose: To coordinate the provision of support services to all structures of PanSALB
in the province.
Strategic objectives: To deliver language products and services to create a
conducive environment for language; to create awareness of language use; to ensure
the sustainability of PanSALB.
Service delivery objectives and indicators:
1.

•
•
•

2.

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Provincial coordination services
Launched North West (NW) Provincial Language Stakeholder Forum, 11 April
2014
Attended and made presentation at Letsema le Bolotse Campaign hosted by
the Department of Basic Education, 25 April 2015
Coordinated and held a strategic meeting with Superintendent General and
Head of Department of the Department of Basic Education, 24 October 2014
Creating awareness of language use
Held a language seminar in conjunction with the North West University
(NWU) Mahikeng Campus, 25 July 2014
Held a book launch of Setswana short stories written by offenders. Event fully
sponsored by the Department of Arts, Culture and Traditional Affairs, 21
August 2014
Supported the Deaf Awareness Conference organised by the Department of
Arts, Culture and Traditional Affairs, 19 September 2014
Attended the National Albinism Commemoration at Ramotshere Moiloa Local
Municipality. It was organised by the Department of Social Development
Supported the Department of Basic Education at the Annual IKS (Setswana)
Cultural Celebration at Taung – Kgotla ya Batlhaping ba ga Phuduhutswana,
25 and 26 September 2014
Held International Translation Day Celebrations at Taung, 3 October 2014
Held a seminar for Honours students at the NWU Mahikeng Campus, 7
October 2014
Held and coordinated the Multilingualism Advocacy Awareness Campaign for
the Department of Health, Mahikeng, 20 November 2014
Held International Mother Language Day celebration in Rustenburg and
rewarded best performing Grade 12 learners in languages, 20 February 2015
Attended and made inputs at public hearings for NW Provincial Languages
Draft Bill 2014 coordinated by NW Legislature at Ottosdal, 4 March 2015
Supported and pledged cooperation at the opening of NW House of
Traditional Leaders at Lowe Building, Old Parliament, 19 March 2015
Held NW Provincial Language Symposium at Tlokwe City Council, 26 March
2015

3. Ensure the sustainability of PanSALB
• Coordinated and held North West Provincial Language Committee (NWPLC)
meeting in Rustenburg, 11 April 2014
• Coordinated and held NWPLC meeting in Klerksdorp, 4-5 December 2014
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Highlights:
• Celebrated International Mother Language Day at Bojanala District,
Rustenburg. The occasion was graced by the Hon MEC for
Education, Mmê Wendy Matsemela. In her speech she highlighted
the significance of mother tongue instruction and informed
attendees how the Department of Basic Education has made
strides in language education
• Best performing Grade 12 learners in languages were honoured on
the day and given cheques ranging from R14 000 to R4 000. They
also received tablets, dictionaries and certificates designed by
PanSALB.
• On 11 April 2014 we launched the Provincial Language
Stakeholder
Forum comprising all key strategic partners in the province. The
event was graced by the Hon MEC for Arts and Culture, Mmê
Tebogo Modise. All stakeholders present participated in signing the
Pledge Form.
• On 26 March 2015 the NWPLC together with other important
stakeholders hosted the Language Symposium at Dr KK District
under the Theme “Repositioning, Rebranding, Renewal of the
Province through Languages”. Key speakers included Adv CJA
Lourens, and Afrikaans language activist, and Prof J Shole from
Unisa.
Challenges:
• Limited budgets or failure to allocate funds for various programmes
hampers fulfilment of our mandate. This means that PanSALB had
to rely on other entities for the execution of our programmes
• Lack of office resources, e.g. stationery, banners, promotional
material, etc.
• Lack of support from senior officials and influential people in
various entities poses serious difficulties in meeting our objectives
Future plans:
• Hold individual meetings with heads of institutions and principals of
targeted departments and entities
• Strengthen ties with potential funders, e.g. DAC, mining
companies, businesspeople
• Urgently attend to (pending) MoUs and MoAs
• Request a separate budget for international events, e.g.
International Translation Day, Deaf Awareness Month, Heritage
Month, Human Rights Day
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23. SUB-PROGRAMME:

WESTERN CAPE PROVINCIAL OFFICE

Purpose: To provide strategic management, leadership and coordination of
PanSALB’s activities at the provincial and local level and ensure implementation
and monitoring of multilingualism as well as the use of official languages.
Strategic
•
•
•
•
•
•

objectives:
Ensure the development and implementation of language policies
Promote the use and development of languages in the province
Monitor the promotion of the use and development of languages in the
province
Develop and implement multilingualism advocacy programmes
Establish strategic partnerships with the relevant local and provincial
stakeholders
Provide administrative and secretarial support, planning and coordination
for PanSALB structures in the province

Service delivery objectives and indicators:
1. Ensure the development and implementation of language policies
•
Attended and participated in the analysis and discussion of the research
report on Language Policy Implementation in the Western Cape Premier’s
Department
•
Received and attended to a language right complaint about Kannaland
Municipality from the Provincial Office of the Public Protector
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2.

Promote the use and development of languages in the province
•
Attended seminar on the status of South African Sign Language (SASL) in
the Western Cape
•
Hosted the isiXhosa Orthography and Spelling Rules workshop
•
Attended and participated in isiXhosa editing workshop
•
Initiated a provincial language forum
•
Attended and participated in a terminology session and provincial language
forum meeting

3.

Monitor the promotion of the use and development of languages in the
province
•
Attended and participated in isiXhosa editing workshop
•
Attended and participated in the SASL subcommittee meeting to discuss
recommendations of the SASL workshop held in 2014

4.

Develop and implement multilingualism advocacy programmes
•
Attended and participated in the South African Book Fair
•
Attended and facilitated a linguistic human rights session at the local
government/Thusong workshop
•
Attended the AGSA launch of the Provincial Office
•
Attended a consultation meeting with the director of Ikamva Labantu
about the revival of book clubs

5.

Establish strategic partnerships with the relevant local and provincial
stakeholders
•
Attended and participated in iLiso lokhozi conference
•
Hosted the International Mother Language Day celebration
•
Facilitated a translation document for the Centre for the Book
•
Attended and participated in a Department of
Communications stakeholders engagement session
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•
•
•
•

6.
•
•
•
•

Attended and participated in the launch of 16 days
of Activism
Attended and participated in the Khayelitsha
Stakeholders Consultative Forum
Attended the launch of The Reactive in the Book
Lounge
Attended and participated in the International
Mother Language Day Celebration: a PanSALB
and Iziko Museum partnership
Provide administrative and secretarial support,
planning and coordination for
PanSALB structures in the province
Supported Afrikaans NLB project
Held staff meetings and undertook quarterly
reviews
Provided support to the Western Cape Language
Committee
Attended the ministerial budget speech of the
Department of Arts and Culture

Challenges:
•
Lack of funding hampers implementation of
provincial programmes
•
Continuous difficulties in sustaining and
strengthening partnership and collaborations
•
Limited resources
Future plans:
•
Adhere to budgetary prescripts, depending on the
provincial budget allocation
•
Hold meetings and execute the projects of
PanSALB structures, e.g. the Western Cape
Language Committee and the Afrikaans NLB.
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HUMAN
RESOURCE

24. HUMAN RESOURCE MATTERS AT PanSALB
INTRODUCTION
The information contained in this part of annual report is developed in line with Public Service Regulations (Chapter 1, Part
III J.3 and 4)
During the reporting period, human resource oversight and control mechanisms have been improved in the areas of
developing submissions for recruitment processes in the organisation.
RECRUITMENT
During the reporting period no recruitment of additional staff took place. This is mainly because the organisation needed to
realign its business operations with organisational strategy.
BUILDING EMPLOYEES’ CAPACITY AND CAPABILITIES
A skills audit will be conducted during the 2015-16 financial year. The skills audit will produce a competency profile that will
provide valuable information regarding core critical competencies and scarce skills within the organisation. This workforce
competency profile will inform human resource planning in a strategic direction.
A workplace plan will identify skills development interventions required to address competency gaps within the organisation.
EMPLOYEE WELLNESS
PanSALB is committed to promoting good quality of work life and creating a healthy and conducive work environment for its
workforce. The services of the Employee Wellness Programme are outsourced to ensure employees’ full confidence in using
the programme.
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT
PanSALB reviewed the Performance Management and Development System (PMDS) to link individual with organisational
performance. However, budgetary constraints prevented us from fully implementing the system. Instead, PanSALB
temporarily adopted the Department of Public Service and Administration (DPSA) Interim Performance Assessment
Questionnaire tool to assess employee performance.
HUMAN RESOURCE CHALLENGES
The following are the human resource challenges experienced:
• Budgetary constraints impacting on the ability of PanSALB to provide training to employees
• Budgetary constraints precluded acquiring software to perform HR functions
These challenges will be addressed as priorities in the 2015-16 financial year, in line with PanSALB’s organisational strategy.
HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS
The following tables summarise final audited personnel-related expenditure, by programme and salary band, and equity
statistics in the organisation.
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Personnel cost by programme
Programme

Personnel
expenditure
(R’000)

Leadership

Personnel
expenditure
as % of total
expenditure

Number of
employees

Average
personnel
cost per
programme
(R)

3 959 307

8%

4

989 826.75

10 888 094

22%

22

494 913.36

5 444 047

11%

10

544 404.70

Language Services and
Linguistic Rights

18 806 408

38%

55

341 934.69

Legal Services

10 393 181

21%

10

1 039 318.10

R 49 491 337

100%

101

Corporate Services
Finance and Budget Services

TOTAL

Personnel cost by salary band
Level

Personnel
expenditure
(R)

% of personnel
expenditure to
total personnel
cost

Number of
employees

Average personnel
cost per employee
(R)

Senior
Management
(Level 13-16)

19 024
9820.00

38.4%

25

760 999.28

Highly Skilled
Supervision
(Level 9-12)

19 899 777.00

40.2%

38

523 678.15

Highly Skilled
Production
(Level 6-8)

9 200 313.00

18.6%

23

400 013.60

Skilled
(Level 3-5)

1 364 473.00

2.8%

15

90 964.87

Unskilled
(Level 1-2)

0.00

0%

0

0.00

49 489 538.00

100%

101

TOTAL

Performance rewards
Directorate or
Business Unit
Leadership
Corporate Services
Finance and Supply
Chain Management
Services
Language Services
Linguistics Human
Rights and
Mediation
TOTAL

Personnel
expenditure
(R)
0.00
141 148.08
107 989.80

Rewards
expenditure as %
of personnel cost
0
18.3%
14%

504 127.08
19 298.04

65.2%
2.5%

43
1

772 563 00

100%

62
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Number of Average rewards cost
employees per employee (R)
rewarded
0
0.00
8
17643.50
10
10798.98
11723.88
19298.04

Training costs
Directorate
or Business
Unit

Personnel
expenditure
(R’000)

0

Training
expenditure
(R’000)
0

0

Training
expenditure as
% of personnel
cost
0

Number of
employees
trained

Average
training cost
per employee
0

0

Notes: Due to budgetary constraints no training activities took place during the 2014/15 financial year.

Employment and vacancies
Programme

2014-15
approved
posts

2014-15
number of
employees

2014-15
vacancies

% vacancies

Senior Management
(Level 13-16)
Highly Skilled
Supervision
(Level 9-12)

35

25

10

26.3%

62

38

24

55.2%

Highly Skilled
Production
(Level 6-8)

26

23

3

14.3%

Skilled (Level 3-5)

16

15

1

10.5%

Unskilled (Level 1-2)
TOTAL

0

0

0

0%

139

101

38

100%

Employment changes
Salary band

Employment at
beginning of
period

Senior Management
(Level 13-16)
Highly Skilled
Supervision
(Level 9-12)
Highly Skilled
Production (Level 6-8)
Skilled (Level 3-5)
Unskilled
(Level 1-2)

Appointments

Terminations

Employment at
end of period

26 (*11)

0

0

26

40 (*16)

0

2

38

23 (*14)

0

0

23

14 (*3)

0

0

14

2 (Contract)

0

2 (Contract)

0

105

0

4

101

TOTAL

Notes: In December 2014, the Board disregarded the employment contracts of 44 employees. The affected
employees have since challenged the actions of the Board in the CCMA and courts.The matter is still pending.

Reasons for staff leaving
Reason

Number

% of total number of staff leaving

Death
Resignation
Dismissal
Retirement
Ill health
Expiry of contract
Other
TOTAL

0
2

0%
50%

0
0
0
2
44
4

0
0
0
50%
43%
100%

Labour relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action
Nature of disciplinary action

Number

Verbal warning
Written warning
Final written warning
Dismissal

0
0
0
0
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Equity targets and employment equity status
Levels

MALE
African

Coloured

Indian

White

Current

Target

Current

Target

Current

Target

Current

Target

Senior Management
(Level 13-16)
Highly Skilled
Supervision
(Level 9-12)
Highly Skilled
Production
(Level 6-8)
Skilled (Level 3-5)

16

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

24

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

4

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Unskilled (Level 1-2)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

TOTAL

45

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Levels

FEMALE
African

Coloured

Indian

White

Current

Target

Current

Target

Current

Target

Current

Target

Senior Management
(Level 13-16)
Highly Skilled
Supervision
(Level 9-12)
Highly Skilled
Production
(Level 6-8)
Skilled
(Level 3-5)
Unskilled
(Level 1-2)

9

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

14

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

19

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

13

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

TOTAL

55

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

Equity targets and employment equity status
Levels

DISABLED STAFF
Male

Female

Current

Target

Current

Target

Senior Management
(Level 13-16)

0

0

0

0

Highly Skilled Supervision
(Level 9-12)
Highly Skilled Production
(Level 6-8)

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

Skilled
(Level 3-5)

0

0

0

0

Unskilled
(Level 1-2)

0

0

0

0

TOTAL

0

0

1

0
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25. REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO
PARLIAMENT ON PanSALB
REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction
1. I was engaged to audit the consolidated and separate financial statements of the Pan South African Language Board
(PanSALB) and its subsidiaries set out on pages 53 to 101, which comprise the consolidated and separate statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2015, the consolidated and separate statement of financial performance,
statement of changes in net assets, cash flow statement and the statement of comparison of budget information for
the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Accounting officer’s responsibility for the consolidated and separate financial
statements
2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated and separate
financial statements in accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA
standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of
1999) (PFMA), and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility
3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements based on conducting
the audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Because of the matters described in the basis for
disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, however, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a
basis for an audit opinion.

Basis for disclaimer of opinion
Other operating and administrative expenditure
4. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for administrative and other operating expenditure. In
addition, I was unable to confirm the restatement by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine
whether any adjustments to administrative expenditure stated at R5 201 000 in note 6 and other operating
expenditure stated at R19 715 000 (2014: R17 930 000) in note 9 of the consolidated and separate financial
statements was necessary. Additionally, there is a consequential impact on the prior year error note 35 and on the
surplus for the period and on the accumulated surplus in the consolidated and separate financial statements.

Payables from exchange transaction
5. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for payable from exchange transaction. In addition I was
unable to confirm the restatement by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any
adjustments to payables from exchange transaction as stated at R5 758 000 (2014: R8 902 000) in note 18 of the
consolidated and separate financial statements was necessary.

Staff costs
6. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management has accounted for all staff costs. In
addition I was unable to confirm the restatement by alternative means. I was unable to confirm by alternative means
that all staff costs have been recorded. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments to staff
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costs stated at R64 683 000 (2014: R70 638 000) in note 7 of the consolidated and separate financial statements was
necessary.

Property, plant and equipment
7. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for property, plant and equipment (PPE) and depreciation
and amortisation, as the institution did not provided auditors with process and procedures used to assess and review
the useful life. In addition I was unable to confirm the restatements and carrying amount of Property, Plant and
Equipment (PPE); depreciation and amortisation by alternative means. Consequently I was unable to determine
whether any adjustments relating to PPE at R3 498 000 (2014: R4 981 000); depreciation and amortisation stated at
R1 065 000 (2014: R1 476 000) in note 15 and in the statement of financial performance of the consolidated and
separate financial statements was necessary.

Irregular expenditure
8. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management has disclosed all irregular expenditures
incurred for the current and prior year as required by section 40(3)(b)(i) of the PFMA. In addition I was unable to
confirm the irregular expenditure by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any
adjustment to irregular expenditure stated at R52 025 000 (2014: R43 363 000) in note 38 of the consolidated and
separate financial statements was necessary.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
9. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management has disclosed all fruitless and wasteful
expenditures incurred for the current and prior year as required by section 40(3)(b)(i) of the PFMA. In addition I was
unable to confirm the fruitless and wasteful expenditure by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to
determine whether any adjustment to fruitless and wasteful expenditure stated at R604 000 (2014: R61 000) in note
37 of the consolidated and separate financial statements was necessary.

Contingent liabilities
10. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management has disclosed all contingent liabilities
incurred for the current and prior year as the institutions internal controls have not been established to properly
account for contingent liabilities. In addition was unable to confirm the contingent liabilities by alternative means.
Consequently I was unable to determine whether any adjustment relating to contingent liabilities in the consolidated
and separate financial statements in disclosure note 25 was necessary.

Related parties
11. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence that management has disclosed all the related parties, as the
institution does not have internal controls to identify related party transactions in accordance with Standard of GRAP
20 on related party disclosure. In addition was unable to determine whether any adjustments relating to related
parties in disclosure note 26 of the consolidated and separate financial statements was necessary.

Cash flow statement
12. The cash flow statement of the constitutional institution is materially misstated, due to incorrect calculations of the
cash flow items and non-compliance with the Standard of GRAP 2 .The effect on the consolidated and separate
financial statements was that the following cash flow items were overstated, Grants R6 191 000; Employee costs
R5 787 000, Payments to Suppliers R1 18 000, and changes in other financial liabilities was understated by
R878 000.

Consolidation
13. I did not receive the separate financial statements and other information I required to evaluate and conclude whether
material misstatements exist at group level from five (5) out of eleven (11) National Lexicography Units (NLU’s). I was
unable to perform alternative procedures on the consolidation process and the work performed by the NLU’s auditors.
Consequently I cannot determine whether there are material adjustments to be made to the consolidated and
separate financial statements.
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Disclaimer of opinion
14. Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, I have
not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion. Accordingly, I
do not express an opinion on these consolidated and separate financial statements.

Emphasis of matters
15. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Restatement of corresponding figures
16. As disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated and separate financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March
2014 have been restated as a result of an errors discovered during 2015 in the consolidated and separate financial
statements of PanSALB at, and for the year ended, 2014.

Significant uncertainties
17. With reference to note 25 to the consolidated and separate financial statements, the institution is the defendant in a
labour lawsuit; the matter is with the Commission for Conciliation, Mediation and Arbitration (CCMA) and Labour
court. The ultimate outcome of the matter cannot presently be determined and no provision for any liability that may
result has been made in the consolidated and separate financial statements.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
18. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice issued
in terms thereof. I have a responsibility to report findings on the reported performance information against
predetermined objectives for selected objectives presented in the annual performance report, non-compliance with
legislation and internal control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable findings as described under each
subheading but not to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express an
opinion or conclusion on these matters.

Predetermined objectives
19. The annual performance report (on pages 16 to 39) and strategic plan were withdrawn for audit purposes and
consequently my findings below are limited to the procedures performed on the Annual Performance Plan and
performance management documents for the following selected objective:
•
Objective 2 – Deliver languages products and services that create a conducive environment for languages
20. I assessed the information to determine whether the performance indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable,
specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s Framework for managing
programme performance information (FMPPI).
21. The material findings in respect of the selected strategic objectives 2 are as follows:

Strategic objective 2 – Deliver language products and services that create a conducive
environment of languages
Usefulness of performance information
22. Performance targets were not specific in clearly identifying the nature and required level of performance and
were not measurable and the period or deadline for delivery of targets was not specified, as required by the
FMPPI.
23. Performance indicators were not clearly defined so that data can be collected consistently and is easy to understand
and use. Performance indicators were also not verifiable. This was due to a lack of technical indicator descriptions and
proper systems and processes and formal standard operating procedures or documented system descriptions.
24. As a result the measurability of planned targets and indicators could not be assessed.
25. The FMPPI requires indicators to relate logically and directly to an aspect of the auditee’s mandate and the realisation
of strategic goals and objectives. The relevance of the indicators could not be assessed due to a lack of corroborative
supporting evidence to verify management’s explanation why the indicators were considered important and relevant
to the realisation of strategic goals and objectives.

Reliability of reported performance information
26. The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store performance information
to ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual achievements against planned objectives, indicators and
targets. We were unable to obtain the information and explanations we considered necessary to satisfy ourselves as
to the reliability of the reported performance information. This was due to the fact that the annual performance report
was withdrawn for audit purposes.
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Compliance with legislation
27. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the constitutional institution had complied with applicable legislation
regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings on material non-compliance
with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows:

Strategic planning and performance management
28. The five year strategic plan for 2013 - 2018 was not tabled in Parliament prior to discussion of the budget vote as
required by treasury regulation 5.2.1. This was due late appointment of the board.
29. The constitutional institution did not maintain an effective, efficient and transparent systems of performance
information and risk management and internal controls, as required by section 38(1)(a)(i) of the PFMA.
30. Procedures for quarterly reporting to the executive authority for the facilitation of effective performance monitoring,
evaluation and corrective action were not established as required by treasury regulation 5.3.1.

Financial statements, performance and annual reports
31. The separate and consolidated financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the
prescribed financial reporting framework and supported by full and proper records as required by section 40(1) (a) and
(b) of the PFMA. Some material misstatements identified by the auditors in the submitted separate and consolidated
financial statements were subsequently corrected and the supporting records were provided subsequently, but the
uncorrected material misstatements and supporting records that could not be provided resulted in the separate and
consolidated financial statements receiving a disclaimer audit opinion.
32. The constitutional institution did not ensure that the 2013 - 2018 strategic plan was used as the basis for reporting on
predetermined objectives, as required by treasury regulations 5.2.4.

Procurement and contract management
33. Contracts and quotations were awarded to bidders based on points given for criteria that differed from those stipulated
in the original invitation for bidding and quotations, in contravention of Treasury Regulations 16A6.3(a) and the
Preferential Procurement Regulations.
34. Goods and services with a transaction value below and above R500 000 were procured without obtaining the required
price quotations, as required by Treasury Regulation 16A6.1.
35. Invitations for competitive bidding were not always advertised in at least the government tender bulletin and not always
advertised for a required minimum period of 21 days, as required by Treasury Regulations 16A6.3(c).
36. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that the preference point system was applied in all
procurement of goods and services above R30 000 and that contracts and quotations were awarded to suppliers
based on preference points that were allocated and calculated as required by section 2(a) of the Preferential
Procurement Policy Framework Act and Treasury Regulations 16A6.3(b).
37. Contracts and quotations were awarded to bidders who did not submit a declaration on whether they are employed by
the state or connected to any person employed by the state, which is prescribed in order to comply with Treasury
regulation 16A8.3.
38. Bid adjudication was not always done by a committee which was composed in accordance with the policies of the
constitutional institution as required by Treasury Regulations 16A6.2 (a), (b) and (c).
39. Contracts were awarded to bidders who did not submit a declaration of past supply chain practices such as fraud,
abuse of SCM system and non-performance, which is prescribed in order to comply with Treasury regulation 16A9.2.
40. Contracts and quotations were awarded to suppliers whose tax matters had not been declared by the South African
Revenue Services to be in order as required by Treasury Regulations 16A9.1 (d) and the Preferential Procurement
Regulations.
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41. IT related goods and services, classified as mandatory, were not procured through SITA as required by Treasury
Regulation 16A6.3 (e).
42. A proper evaluation of major capital projects were no done prior to a final decision on the project as per the
requirements of section 38(1) (a) of the PFMA.
43. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that all contracts and quotations were awarded in
accordance with the legislative requirements as the institution did not provide us with supporting documents.

Expenditure management
44. Effective steps were not taken to prevent Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as required by section
38(1)(c)(ii) of the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 9.1.1.
45. Effective internal controls were not in place for payment approval and processing, as required by Treasury Regulation
8.1.1.
46. Contractual obligations and money owed by the PanSALB were not settled within 30 days / an agreed period, as
required by section 38(1)(f) of the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 8.2.3.

Asset management and liability management
47. Proper control systems to safeguard and maintain assets were not implemented, as required by section 38(1)(d) of
the PFMA and treasury regulation 10.1.1(a).

Consequence management
48. Effective and appropriate disciplinary steps were not taken against officials who made and or permitted irregular
expenditure and fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as required by section 38(1)(h)(iii) of the Public Finance
Management Act and Treasury Regulation 9.1.3.

Pan South African Language Board, 1995 (Act No.59 of 1995) (PanSALB Act)
49. The following functions were not performed:
•
The board did not establish and gazette six provincial language committees, as required by section 8(8)(a)
of the PanSALB Act.
•
The board did not establish and gazette five national language bodies, as required by section 8(8)(b) of the
PanSALB Act.
•
The board did not exercise oversight of and monitor the National Lexicography Units, as required by section
8(8)(c) of the PanSALB Act.
•
The board incurred expenditure in excess of the approved statement of income and expenditure, in
contravention of section 10A (3)(C).

Skill Development Levies Act, 1999 (Act No. 9 of 1999)
50. The constitutional institution did not register with and pay skills development levies to the South African Revenue
Service Commissioner, as required by section 3 of the Skill Development Act.

Internal control
51. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, performance report and compliance with
legislation. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the
basis for disclaimer opinion, the findings on the performance report and the findings on non-compliance with
legislation included in this report.

Leadership
52. PanSALB operated with an acting Chief Executive Officer (position was only filled effective from 1 July 2015) and an
acting Chief Financial Officer for the year under review. As a result there was no leadership stability to ensure
adequate implementation of internal controls and monitoring.

Annual Report for 2014-15 Financial Year - PanSALB

51

53. Insufficient action plans to address all shortcomings.
54. Staff is not equipped and not adequately skilled to perform their roles and responsibilities and no consequent
management are implemented.

Financial and performance management
55. The systems and processes in place are not adequately designed to support accurate and complete consolidated
annual financial statements.

Other reports
Investigations
56. An investigation was initiated based on allegations of possible financial mismanagement by the National Treasury.
The report is in a draft stage to date.

Pretoria
31 July 2015
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY
Statement of Responsibility for the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015.
The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation of PanSALB’s annual financial statements and for the
judgements made in this information.
The Accounting Authority is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control designed to provide
reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the annual financial statements.
In my opinion, the financial statements fairly reflect the operations of PanSALB for the financial year ended 31 March 2015.
The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements of PanSALB.
The annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 have been audited by the external auditors and their
report is presented on page 46.
The annual financial statements of PanSALB, set out on pages 58 to 101, have been approved.

_________________
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PanSALB
17 September 2015

_________________
CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD
PanSALB
17 September 2015
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REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of the annual consolidated financial
statements of the Pan South African Language Board (PanSALB). The financial statements presented on page s 5 to 48 have
been prepared in accordance with the prescribed Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) issued by
the Accounting Standards Board and in the manner required by the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA).
The financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates. The Accounting Officer also prepared the other information included in the annual
report and is responsible for both its accuracy and its consistency with the financial statements.
The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements. The Accounting Officer has no reason to
believe that PanSALB will not be a going concern in the foreseeable future based on forecasts and available cash resources.
The consolidated financial statements were approved and signed by the Accounting Officer on 31 July 2015 .

Annual Report for 2014-15 Financial Year - PanSALB

55

PanSALB CONSOLIDATED

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

AUDIT, RISK AND ICT COMMITTEE REPORT
Audit, Risk and ICT Committee report for the financial year ended 31 March 2015.
Audit, Risk and ICT Committee members and attendance
The Audit, Risk and ICT committee (" the committee") consists of the members listed hereunder who were appointed in
September 2014. The Committee's first meeting was held in November 2014. During the current financial year two (2)
meetings were held.
Name of member
Mr M Mathose (Chairperson)
Dr P Nkuna
Mr J Blose
Ms S Manyenge
Mr X Khumalo
Ms M Shongwe (resigned)

Number of meetings attended
2
2
2
1
2
1

Audit, Risk and ICT committee responsibility
The committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its charter, has regulated its
affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.
The effectiveness of internal control
The system of internal controls applied by the economic entity over financial and risk management is effective, efficient and
transparent. In line with the PFMA, Internal Audit provides the committee and management with assurance that the
internal controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of the risk management process, as well as the
identification of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes. From the various reports of
the Internal Auditors, the audit report on the annual financial statements, and the management report of the Auditor-General
South Africa, it was noted that some matters were reported that indicate some deficiencies in the system of internal control
or any deviations therefrom. Accordingly, we can report that there is some room for improvement in the system of internal
control over financial reporting for the period under review.
Management has provided the committee with management reports in terms of the PFMA.
The committee is satisfied with the content and quality of reports prepared and issued by the of the economic entity
during the year under review.
Evaluation of annual financial statements
The committee has:
reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial statements to be included in the annual report, with the
•
Auditor-General;
reviewed the Auditor-General of South Africa's management report and management’s response thereto;
•
reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices;
reviewed the entities compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;
•
reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit.
•
The committee concur with and accept the Auditor-General of South Africa's report on the annual financial statements, and
are of the opinion that the audited annual financial statements should be accepted and read together with the report of the
Auditor-General of South Africa.
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Internal audit
The committee is satisfied that the internal audit function is operating effectively and that it has addressed the risks
pertinent to the economic entity in its audits.
Auditor-General of South Africa
The committee has met with the Auditor-General of South Africa to ensure that there are no unresolved issues.

M Mathose
Chairperson of the Audit, Risk and ICT Committee

Date:
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand

Note(s)

2015

PanSALB

2014
Restated*

2015

2014
Restated*

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Sales
Other income
Interest received

3
5
11

438
200
635

798
388
481

175

70
126

1 273

1 667

175

196

91 087
2 749

98 397
2 845

90 837
-

98 197
95

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions

93 836

101 242

90 837

98 292

Total revenue

95 109

102 909

91 012

98 488

(64 683)
(5 201)
(1 065)
(8)
(34)
(60)
(19 715)
(90)

(70 638)
(7 480)
(1 476)
(179)
(100)
(60)
(17 931)
(427)

(49 532)
(3 519)
(980)
(8)
(34)
(32)
(16 756)
(16 253)
-

(55 285)
(5 505)
(1 252)
(5)
(99)
(5)
(16 609)
(15 702)
-

(90 856)

(98 291)

(87 114)

(94 462)

4 253
(241)
114

4 618
(16)
-

3 898
(241)
-

4 026
(16)
-

(127)

(16)

(241)

(16)

Total revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies
Gifts, sponsorships and donations

Expenditure
Staff costs
Administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment loss
Finance costs
Repairs and maintenance
Transfers and subsidies paid
Other operating expenses
Cost of sales

2
4

7
6

10
9
9
33

Total expenditure
Operating surplus
Loss on assets
Fair value adjustments

21

Surplus for the y ear

4 126

4 602

3 657

4 010

Attributable to:
PanSALB
NLUs

3 657
469

4 010
592

3 657
-

4 010
-

4 126

4 602

3 657

4 010
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT
31 MARCH 2015
Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand

Note(s)

2015

PanSALB

2014
Restated*

2015

2014
Restated*

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Inventories
Receivables from exchange transactions
Other financial assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Other financial assets

12
13
14
17

15
16
17

Total Assets

13 638
1 255
1 014
6 591

5 551
1 296
893
7 397

11 751
245
-

4 634
227
-

22 498

15 137

11 996

4 861

3 498
144
1 571

4 981
339
-

2 693
134
-

3 673
235
-

5 213

5 320

2 827

3 908

27 711

20 457

14 823

8 769

5 758
271
1 381
6 191

8 902
427
942
-

4 257
271
1 381
6 191

7 937
427
942
-

13 601

10 271

12 100

9 306

5 663

149
4 898

-

149
-

5 663

5 047

-

149

19 264

15 318

12 100

9 455

8 447

5 139

2 723

(686)

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Payables from exchange transactions
Finance lease obligations
Other financial liabilities
Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Non-current liabilities
Finance lease obligations
Retirement benefit obligation
Total Liabilities
Net Assets

18
19
31
32

19
20

Net Assets
PanSALB
Accumulated surplus

3 049

(686)

2 723

(686)

PanSALB
NLUs

3 049
5 398

(686)
5 825

2 723
-

(686)
-

Total Net Assets

8 447

5 139

2 723

(686)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Accumulated
deficit

Figures in Rand thousand
PanSALB
Opening balance as previously reported
Adjustments
Prior year adjustments
Balance at 01 April 2013 as restated*
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year
NLU Surplus adjustments
Total changes
Opening balance as previously reported
Adjustments
Prior year adjustments

(5 565)
869

PanSALB

(5 565)
869

NLU's

Consolidated
net assets

-

869

(4 696)

(4 696)

4 010
-

4 010
-

4 010

4 010

-

4 010

(5 313)

(5 313)

-

(5 313)

4 379

4 379

-

4 379

-

4 479
(469)

3 657
-

3 657
-

Total changes

3 657

3 657

-

3 657

Balance at 31 March 2015

2 723

2 723

-

2 723

Financial Year - PanSALB

(934)

469
(469)

(4 696)

Restated* Balance at 01 April 2014 as restated*
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year
NLU Surplus adjustments
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand

Note(s)

2015

PanSALB

2014
Restated*

2015

2014
Restated*

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Grants
Interest income
Other receipts

Payments
Employee costs
Suppliers
Finance costs
Transfers and subsidies paid
Undefined difference compared to the cash
generated from operations note
Net cash flows from operating activities

97 278
635
3 282

98 160
481
3 988

97 028
175
-

97 960
126
95

101 195

102 629

97 203

98 181

(63 579)
(28 485)
(34)
-

(69 258)
(27 735)
(100)
-

(49 669)
(23 366)
(34)
(16 756)

(54 484)
(22 081)
(99)
(16 609)

(92 098)

(97 093)

(89 825)

(93 273)

(247)
21

8 850

5 536

(247)
7 131

4 908

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of other intangible assets
Increase in loans receivable

15
16

Net cash flows from investing activities

(241)
(5)
(651)

(989)
475

(148)
-

(912)
-

(897)

(514)

(148)

(912)

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of other financial liabilities
Net finance lease movement

439
(305)

6
-

439
(305)

6
-

Net cash flows from financing activities

134

6

134

6

8 087

5 028

7 117

4 002

5 551

523

4 634

632

13 638

5 551

11 751

4 634

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET
AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
Budget on Cash Basis
Approved
budget

Adjustments

Final Budget Actual amounts Difference
on comparable between final
basis
budget and
actual

Figures in Rand thousand

Reference

PanSALB
Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange
transactions
Interest received - investment

-

-

-

175

175

bank interest
received

Taxation revenue
Government grants & subsidies

83 497

-

83 497

90 837

7 340

Additional
grant received
from Lottery,
Gauteng and
Mpumalanga

Total revenue

83 497

-

83 497

91 012

7 515

(60 720)

-

(60 720)

(49 532)

Revenue from non-exchange
transactions

Expenditure
Compensation of employees

Administration

-

-

-

(3 519)

Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment loss/ Reversal of
impairments
Finance costs

-

-

-

(980)
(8)

-

-

-

(34)

Repairs and maintenance
Grants and subsidies paid
Goods and services

Total expenditure

11 188 Dismisal of 44
employees on
31 December
2014
(3 519) Bugeted with
general
expenses
(980)
Note 15
(8)
Note 15
(34) Recognition of
Cell phone
leases and
office
equipment
(32)
Note9
(146) Transfers to
NLUs
(10 086) Expenditure
incured for
Scholarship
and
translations

(16 610)

-

(16 610)

(32)
(16 756)

(6 167)

-

(6 167)

(16 253)

(83 497)

-

(83 497)

(87 114)

(3 617)

Operating surplus
Loss on disposal of assets and
liabilities

-

-

-

3 898
(241)

3 898
(241)

Surplus before taxation

-

-

-

3 657

3 657
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET
AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
Budget on Cash Basis
Approved
budget

Adjustments

Final Budget

Actual amounts
Difference
on comparable between final
basis
budget and
actual

Figures in Rand thousand
Actual Amount on Comparable
Basis as Presented in the
Budget and Actual
Comparative Statement

-
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The following are the principal accounting policies of the entity which are, in all material respects, consistent with those
applied in the previous year, except as otherwise indicated:

1. Basis of preparation
These annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public
Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).
These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with
historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African
Rand.
In the absence of an issued and effective Standard of GRAP, accounting policies for material transactions, events or
conditions were developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5.
Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by
Standard of GRAP.

1.1 Presentation currency
These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the economic
entity.

1.2 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial information of the National Lexicography Units (NLUs), which
are named in the notes to the financial statements. The NLUs are Non Profit Companies, representing the 11 official
lanaguages of South Africa, are situated at and administered by the respective universities. The units were consolidated
according to GRAP 6.
Basis of consolidation
Consolidated annual financial statements are the annual financial statements of the economic entity presented as those of
a single entity.
The consolidated annual financial statements incorporate the annual financial statements of the controlling entity and all
controlled entity which are controlled by the controlling entity.
Control exists as per Section 8 (8) (c) of the PanSALB Act, which requires PanSALB to establish units to operate as non
profit companies, and PanSALB shall allocate funds to the units for the fulfilment of their functions; provided that the
memorandum of incorporation of such units shall include the following principles:
(i) The unit is accountable to PanSALB for moneys allocated to it.
(ii) The unit shall abide by the policies of PanSALB.
(iii) The unit shall adhere to the principles of promoting language development.
The annual financial statements of the controlling entity and its controlled entities used in the preparation of the
consolidated annual financial statements are prepared as of the same reporting date.
Adjustments are made when necessary to the annual financial statements of the controlled entities to bring their accounting
policies in line with those of the controlling entity.
All intra-entity transactions, balances, revenues and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.
Minority interests in the net assets of the economic entity are identified and recognised separately from the controlling
entity's interest therein, and are recognised within net assets. Losses applicable to the minority in a consolidated controlled
entity may exceed the minority interest in the controlled entity’s net assets. The excess, and any further losses applicable to
the minority, are allocated against the majority interest except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation to, and
is able to, make an additional investment to cover the losses. If the controlled entity subsequently reports surpluses, such
surpluses are allocated to the majority interest until the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the majority has
been recovered.
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Minority interests in the surplus or deficit of the economic entity is separately disclosed.

1.3 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these
estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:
Trade receivables and/or loans and receivables
PanSALB assesses its trade receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the surplus makes judgements as to whether there is observable
data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.
Fair value estimation
The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair
values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available to PanSALB for similar financial instruments.
Post retirement benefits
The present value of the post retirement obligation depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial
basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) include the discount
rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact on the carrying amount of post retirement obligations.
PanSALB determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be used to
determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the pension obligations. In
determining the appropriate discount rate, PanSALB considers the interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of
the related pension liability.
Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based on current market conditions. Additional information is disclosed
in Note 20.
Effective interest rate
The economic entity used the prime interest rate to discount future cash flows.
Allowance for doubtful debts
On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The
impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.

1.4 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one period.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
•
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
•
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.
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1.4 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.
When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated
residual value.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
IT equipment
Leasehold improvements
Leased Assets
Books

Average useful life
5-17 years
5-20 years
10-17 years
5-17 years
3-5 years
5-20 years
leased period
indefinite life

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting date. If
the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.
Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate unless
expectations differ from the previous estimate.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of
another asset.
Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

1.5 Intangible assets
An asset is identifiable if it either:
is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or
•
exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of
whether the entity intends to do so; or
arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are
•
transferable or separable from PanSALB or from other rights and obligations.
A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in
the form of a contract.
An intangible asset is recognised when:
it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will
•
flow to PanSALB; and
the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
•
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1.5 Intangible assets (continued)
Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured
at its fair value as at that date.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:
Item
Computer software, other

Useful life
3-5 years

Intangible assets are derecognised:
on disposal; or
when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.
•
The gain or loss is the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount. It is recognised in
surplus or deficit when the asset is derecognised.

1.6 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual
interest of another entity.
The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to
discharge an obligation.
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates.
Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement of
financial position.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or
group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption
that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in
those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or
group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial
instrument (or group of financial instruments).
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties
in an arm’s length transaction.
A financial asset is:
cash;
•
a residual interest of another entity; or
•
a contractual right to:
•
receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
favourable to the entity.
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued)
A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
•
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.
•
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates.
Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.
Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset
or financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or
disposed of the financial instrument.
Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have
fixed or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition.
Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.
Loans to (from) PanSALB include loans to and from controlling entities, fellow controlled entities, controlled entities, joint
ventures and associates and are recognised initially at fair value plus direct transaction costs.
Loans to PanSALB are classified as loans and receivables.
Loans from PanSALB are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.
Trade and other receivables are categorised as financial assets and are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Amortised cost refers to the initial carrying amount, plus interest, less repayments and
impairments. An estimate is made for doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at year-end.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is
impaired. Impairments are determined by discounting expected future cash flows to their present value. Amounts that are
receivable within 12 months from the reporting date are classified as current. Current assets will be classified as noncurrent
when they are expected to be either realised, consumed or sold, as part of the normal operating cycle even when they are
not expected to be realised within twelve months of the reporting date.
An impairment of trade receivables is accounted for by reducing the carrying amount of trade receivables through the use of
an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance within operating
expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against operating expenses in the Statement of Financial Performance.
Financial liabilities consist of payables from exchage transactions and borrowings. They are categorised as financial
liabilities held at amortised cost, are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost which is
the initial carrying amount, less repayments, plus interest.
Cash includes cash on hand (including petty cash) and cash with banks (including call deposits). Cash equivalents are
short-term highly liquid investments, readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are held with registered banking
institutions with maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. For the
purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks,
net of bank overdrafts. The entity categorises cash and cash equivalents as financial assets.
Bank overdrafts and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement
or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance with PanSALB’s accounting policy
for borrowing costs.
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued)
Classification
The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:
`

Class
Other Financial Assets
Cash and Cash equivalent
Receivables from exchanged transactions

Category
Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Financial asset measured at fair value
Financial asset measured at fair value

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:
`

Class
Bank overdraft
Finance lease obligations
Payables from exchanged transactions
Retirement benefit obligation

Category
Financial liability measured at fair value
Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Financial liability measured at fair value
Financial liability measured at fair value

Initial recognition
The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued)
Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:
Financial instruments at fair value.
•
Financial instruments at amortised cost.
•
Financial instruments at cost.
•
All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.
Gains and losses
A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is
recognised in surplus or deficit.
For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or
deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process.
Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets
The entity assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired.
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly OR through the use of an allowance account.
The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed directly OR by
adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.
Financial assets measured at cost:
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest that is not
measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed.
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition
Financial assets
The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;
•
the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset;
•
or
the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has
•
transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its
entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity :
derecognise the asset; and
recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.
The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those transferred
on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair
values at that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is
recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.
If the entity transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to
service the financial asset for a fee, it recognise either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. If
the fee to be received is not expected to compensate the entity adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing liability
for the servicing obligation is recognised at its fair value. If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate
compensation for the servicing, a servicing asset is recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis
of an allocation of the carrying amount of the larger financial asset.
If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity obtaining a
new financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the entity recognise the new financial asset,
financial liability or servicing liability at fair value.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.
If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the
previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a
retained servicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part derecognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in
surplus or deficit.
If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the entity has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the transferred asset, the entity continue to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and recognise a
financial liability for the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the entity recognises any revenue on the transferred
asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the associated liability nor the revenue, and
the associated expenses are offset.
Financial liabilities
The entity removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is
extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred
to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by way of a non-exchange
transaction are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions
(Taxes and Transfers).
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued)
Presentation
Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in
surplus or deficit.
Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or
expense in surplus or deficit.
A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the entity does not offset the
transferred asset and the associated liability.

1.7 Leases as lessee
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease
is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.
Finance leases - lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fairvalue
of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability tothe lessor
is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease.
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the
remaining balance of the liability.
Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset
or liability.

1.8 Prepayments
Prepayments are recognised when the resources that have been transferred meet the criteria for recognition as an asset.
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1.9 Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective
The following GRAP standards have been issued but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the entity:
GRAP 18 - Segment Reporting - issued February 2011. This new standard of GRAP: Establishes principles for reporting
financial information by segments. The impact of implementing this standard is expected to be immaterial in the context of
this entity's operations and the enity is not required to apply this standard.
GRAP 20 - Related Party Disclosures - Issued June 2011.This new standard of GRAP ensures that a reporting entity’s
financial statements contain the disclosures necessary to draw attention to the possibility that its financial position and
surplus or deficit may have been affected by the existence of related parties and by transactions and outstanding balances
with such parties.
GRAP 105 - Transfer of Functions between entities under common control - Issued November 2010. This new standard of
GRAP establishes accounting principles for the acquirer and transferor in a transfer of functions between entities under
common control.
GRAP 106 - Transfer of Functions between entities not under common control - Issued November 2010. This new standard
establishes accounting principles for the acquirer in a transfer of functions between entities not under common control.
GRAP 107 - Mergers - Issued November 2010. This new standard establishes accounting principles for the combined entity
and combining entities in a merger.
Improvements to Standards of GRAP - Improvements are proposed to following standards of GRAP: GRAP 1-4, 9-14, 1617, 19 and 100 as part of the ASB's improvement project. The impact of implementing this standard is expected to be
immaterial in the context of this entity's operations.
The following GRAP standards were applied for the current financial year:
GRAP 25 - Employee Benefits - issued November 2009. The new standard of GRAP dealing with the requirements around
accounting and disclosure of employee benefits including short term, long term and post retirement employee benefits. The
impact of implementing this standard is expected to be immaterial in the context of this entity's operations.

1.10 Inventories
Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then
their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;
distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or
•
consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.
•
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.
The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.
The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for
specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs.
The cost of inventories is assigned using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) formula. The same cost formula is used for all
inventories having a similar nature and use to PanSALB.
When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are
distributed, or related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current
replacement cost and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current
replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.
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1.11 Transfers and subsidies
Transfers and subsidies are economic outflows in the form of cash to the Non Profit Companies situated at and
administered by the respective universities in the 9 provinces of South Africa and were consolidated according to GRAP 6.
PanSALB established these units to operate as non profit companies, and PanSALB shall allocate funds to these units for
the fulfilment of their functions.

1.12 Impairment of cash-generating assets
Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the economic entity with the primary objective of generating a commercial
return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generates a
commercial return.
Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic
recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).
Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.
A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets held with the primary objective of generating a
commercial return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets.
Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income
tax expense.
Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.
Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.
Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
Useful life is either:
(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the economic entity; or
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the economic entity.
Criteria developed by the economic entity to distinguish cash-generating assets from non-cash-generating assets are as
follow:
Identification
When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired.
The economic entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the economic entity estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the economic entity also test a cash-generating intangible
asset with an indefinite useful life or a cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every year.
If an intangible asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for
impairment before the end of the current reporting period.
Value in use
Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from
the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
When estimating the value in use of an asset, the economic entity estimates the future cash inflows and outflows to be
derived from continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the economic entity applies the appropriate
discount rate to those future cash flows.
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1.12 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued)
Basis for estimates of future cash flows
In measuring value in use the economic entity:
base cash flow projections on reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent management's best
•
estimate of the range of economic conditions that will exist over the remaining useful life of the asset. Greater
weight is given to external evidence;
base cash flow projections on the most recent approved financial budgets/forecasts, but excludes any estimated
•
future cash inflows or outflows expected to arise from future restructurings or from improving or enhancing the
asset's performance. Projections based on these budgets/forecasts covers a maximum period of five years,
unless a longer period can be justified; and
estimate cash flow projections beyond the period covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts by extrapolating
the projections based on the budgets/forecasts using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years,
unless an increasing rate can be justified. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate
for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
asset is used, unless a higher rate can be justified.
Composition of estimates of future cash flows
Estimates of future cash flows include:
projections of cash inflows from the continuing use of the asset;
•
projections of cash outflows that are necessarily incurred to generate the cash inflows from continuing use of the
•
asset (including cash outflows to prepare the asset for use) and can be directly attributed, or allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis, to the asset; and
net cash flows, if any, to be received (or paid) for the disposal of the asset at the end of its useful life.
•
Estimates of future cash flows exclude:
cash inflows or outflows from financing activities; and
•
income tax receipts or payments.
•
The estimate of net cash flows to be received (or paid) for the disposal of an asset at the end of its useful life is the amount
that the economic entity expects to obtain from the disposal of the asset in an arm's length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal.
Discount rate
The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money, represented by the
current risk-free rate of interest and the risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not been
adjusted.
Recognition and measurement (individual asset)
If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the cash-generating asset to
which it relates, the economic entity recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standard of GRAP.
After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is adjusted
in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
Cash-generating units
If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the economic entity determines the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset's cash-generating unit).
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1.12 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued)
If an active market exists for the output produced by an asset or group of assets, that asset or group of assets is identified
as a cash-generating unit, even if some or all of the output is used internally. If the cash inflows generated by any asset or
cash-generating unit are affected by internal transfer pricing, the economic entity use management's best estimate of future
price(s) that could be achieved in arm's length transactions in estimating:
the future cash inflows used to determine the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use; and
•
the future cash outflows used to determine the value in use of any other assets or cash-generating units that are
•
affected by the internal transfer pricing.
Cash-generating units are identified consistently from period to period for the same asset or types of assets, unless a
change is justified.
The carrying amount of a cash-generating unit is determined on a basis consistent with the way the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is determined.
An impairment loss is recognised for a cash-generating unit if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit. The impairment is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the cash-generating assets of the unit on a
pro rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. These reductions in carrying amounts are treated as
impairment losses on individual assets.
In allocating an impairment loss, the entity does not reduce the carrying amount of an asset below the highest of:
•
its fair value less costs to sell (if determinable);
its value in use (if determinable); and
•
zero.
•
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
cash-generating assets of the unit.
Where a non-cash-generating asset contributes to a cash-generating unit, a proportion of the carrying amount of that noncash-generating asset is allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit prior to estimation of the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit.
1.13 Impairment of assets
Cash-generating assets are those assets held by PanSALB with the primary objective of generating a commercial return.
When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generates a commercial
return.
Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.
Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic
recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).
Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.
Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.
Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.
Useful life is either:
(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by PanSALB; or
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the economic entity.
Identification
When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired.
The economic entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the economic entity estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset.
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1.13 Impairment of assets (continued)
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the entity also tests a non-cash-generating intangible asset with
an indefinite useful life or a non-cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable service amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time
every year. If an intangible asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was
tested for impairment before the end of the current reporting period.
Value in use
Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating assets remaining service
potential.
The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating assets is determined using the following
approach:
Recognition and measurement
If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-generating asset to
which it relates, the economic entity recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP.
After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if
any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
Reversal of an impairment loss
The economic entity assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in
prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the
economic entity estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset.
An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.
The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an
impairment loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase.
After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating
asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual
value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

1.14 Payables from exchange transactions
Payables from exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives
approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash) to another enity in exchange.
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1.15 Contingencies
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised.
Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial
statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and the
asset’s value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognised in the financial statements of the
period in which the change occurs. If an inflow of economic benefits or service potential has become probable, an entity
discloses the contingent asset.
A contingent liability is:
(a) a possible obligation that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or
(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:
(i) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required
to settle the obligation; or
(ii) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

1.16 Related parties
PanSALB operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African
Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa,
only entities within the national sphere of government are considered to be related parties.
Key management is defined as being individuals with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of PanSALB, including those charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in
instances where they are required to perform such functions. PanSALB regards all individuals at senior management as
related parties per the definition of the financial reporting standards.
Close family members of key management personnel are considered to be those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, management in their dealings with PanSALB.

1.17 Retirement benefit costs
The entity operates a defined contribution plan. The plan is generally funded by payments from the entity and employees.
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged to the income statement in the year to which they
relate.
The cost of short-term employee benefits including salaries (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered,
such as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in
the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.
Bureau of the Woordeboek van die Afrikaanse Taal NPC provides for post-retirement medical and group life insurance
contributions in relation to current and retired employees. The expected costs of these benefits are accounted for by using
the projected unit credit method. Under this method, the expected costs of these benefits are accumulated over the service
lives of the employees. The valuation of this obligation is carried out by independent qualified actuaries at least once every
three years.
All actuarial gains and losses due to experience as well as adjustments to the original plan are recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income over the average remaining service lives of employees.

1.18 Revenue recognition
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result
in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.
An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.
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1.18 Revenue recognition (continued)
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction.
Revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that accrues to the entity directly in return for services rendered or
goods sold, the value of which approximates the consideration received or receivable, excluding indirect taxes, rebates and
discounts.
Revenue from exchange transactions is only recognised once all of the following criteria have been satisfied:
a) The entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;
b) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably; and
c) It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity and
the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis.
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when substantially all the risks and rewards in those goods are passed to the
consumer.
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Revenue from non-exchange transactions refers to transactions where the entity received revenue from another entity
without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange. Revenue from non-exchange transactions is generally
recognised to the extent that the related receipt or receivable qualifies for recognition as an asset and there is no liability to
repay the amount.
Grants, transfers and donations
Grants, transfers and donations received or receivable are recognised when the resources that have been transferred meet
the criteria for recognition as an asset. A corresponding liability is raised to the extent that the grant, transfer or donation is
conditional. The liability is transferred to revenue as and when the conditions attached to the grant are met. Grants without
any conditions attached are recognised as revenue when the asset is recognised.
Conditions on transferred assets require that the entity either:
- Consume the future economic benefits or service potential of the asset as specified; or
- Return future economic benefits or service potential to the transferor in the event that the conditions are breached
Royalties
Royalties are recognised as they are earned in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.

1.19 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost.
Cash includes cash on hand and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are held
with registered banking institutions with maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value.
For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits held on call
with banks.
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1.20 Comparative information
When the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is amended, prior period comparative
amounts are restated. The nature and reason for the reclassification is disclosed. Where accounting errors have been
identified in the current year, the correction is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives
are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment is made
retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly. W here there is a change
in accounting estimate, the adjustment is made prospectively.

1.21 Events after the reporting date
If the entity receives information after the reporting date, but before the financial statements are authorised for issue, about
conditions that existed at the reporting date, it shall update disclosures that relate to these conditions, in the light of the new
information.
If non-adjusting events after the reporting date are material the entity shall disclose the nature of the event and an estimate
of its financial effect or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made.

1.22 Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including (a) this Act; or
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.
When confirmed, irregular expenditure must be recorded in the notes to the financial statements. The amount to be
recorded in the notes must be equal to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless it is impracticable to detemine
the value thereof. Where such impracticality exists, the reasons therefore must be provided in the notes. Irregular
expenditure must be removed from the notes when it is either:
(a) condoned by National Treasury or the relevant authority;
(b) it is transferred to receivables for recovery; or
(c) it is not condoned and is irrecoverable.
A receivable related to irregular expenditure is measured at the amount that is expected to be recovered and must be derecognised when the receivable is settled or subsequently written off irrecoverable.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided has
reasonable care been exercised.

1.23 Conditional grants and receipts
Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue to the extent that the entity
has complied with any of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the criteria,
conditions or obligations have not been met a liability is recognised.
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1.24 Budget information
Economic entity is typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent),
which is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.
General purpose financial reporting by economic entity shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and
used in accordance with the legally adopted budget.
The approved budget is prepared on a accrual basis and presented by economic classification linked to performance
outcome objectives.
The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 2014/04/01 to 2015/03/31.
The annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the
budgeted amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts.
Comparative information is not required.
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Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand
2.

2015

PanSALB

2014

2015

2014

Government grants & subsidies

National Department - Arts and Culture
Provincial department - Sports, Art and Culture - Free
State (Conditional)
Department of Arts and Culture - Mpumalanga
Statistics SA
Microsoft
Provincial Department - Mpumalanga Grant conditional
Lottery Grant
Gauteng Legislature

85 496
-

97 510
200

85 496
-

97 510
200

250
125
4 613
603

200
9
228
250
-

125
4 613
603

9
228
250
-

91 087

98 397

90 837

98 197

Books
CD-Roms
Dictionaries

199
216
23

322
173
303

-

-

Total

438

798

-

-

2 749

2 845

-

95

Administrative and reimbursive income
Bad debts recovered
Other income
Royalties
Workshop facilitation

60
116
24

191
25
48
119
5

-

70
-

Total

200

388

-

70

Administration and management fees - third party
Auditor's remuneration

1 942
2 200

2 899
2 246

763
1 719

1 275
1 928

Auditor's remuneration - External audit fees
Auditor's remuneration - Internal audit fees

1 881
319

1 562
684

1 400
319

1 244
684

402
4
2
651

63
5
2 267

402
635

59
5
2 238

5 201

7 480

3 519

5 505

3.

4.

Sales

Gifts, sponsorships and donations

Donations
5.

6.

Other income

Administrative expenditure

Board remuneration
Staff training and development
Bad debts written off
Legal fees
Total
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Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand
7.

2015

PanSALB

2014

2015

2014

Staff costs

Salaries

52 199

59 200

40 645

45 826

Basic
Long-service awards
Acting allowances
Leave pay provision charge
Overtime payments
Bonus
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and
other allowances
Housing subsidy

43 425
67
256
249
1 616
6 586

49 125
63
256
567
12
1 922
7 255

32 158
256
187
1 458
6 586

36 005
256
529
12
1 769
7 255

1 423

1 532

1 423

1 532

Employer social contributions

9 289

8 837

7 464

7 927

Medical aid
UIF
WCA
SDL
Provision for post-retirement employee benefit
Defined pension contribution plan
Other payroll levies

2 794
307
40
9
765
5 373
1

2 249
200
248
9
(91)
6 221
1

2 403
281
40
4 740
-

1 855
174
248
5 650
-

Directors' remuneration - NLUs

1 772

1 069

-

-

64 683

70 638

49 532

55 285

107

151

63

107

Total
Number of staff members
8.

Transfers and subsidies

Subsidies
National Lexicography Units (Note 26)
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Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand
9.

2015

PanSALB

2014

2015

2014

Other operating expenses

Advertising
Cleaning
Co-operation with other bodies
Communications and marketing
Computer expenses
Consulting and professional fees
Consumables
Entertainment
Projects - Language in Education
Lease rentals on operating lease
Lexicography Development
Linguistic Human Rights
Literature and Media
Motor vehicle expenses
National Language Bodies
Other expenses
Other project expenses
Printing and stationery
Project - Language in Education
Provincial Language Committees
Telephone and fax
Translation and Interpretion
Travel - local
Utilities - Other
Total
Maintenance, repairs and running costs Reconciliation
- Other maintenance and repairs

19
13
1 492
34
17
4 426
66
13
19
5 363
6
2 716
8
74
338
155
3
1 719
331
673
1 644
586

842
144
5 355
103
4 661
144
359
763
492
690
3
19
2 277
1
1 723
355

19
676
10
3 920
45
14
4 651
6
2 716
74
169
155
1 719
314
673
527
565

842
134
4 927
64
4 100
144
359
763
239
690
19
2 277
791
353

19 715

17 931

16 253

15 702

(60)

(60)

(32)

(5)

10. Finance costs
Obligations under finance lease

34

100

34

99

445
190

358
123

175
-

126
-

635

481

175

126

11. Interest received
Bank
Bank deposits

12. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term, highly liquid investments that are held with registered banking
institutions with maturities of three months or less and that are subject to insignificant interest rate risk. The carrying amount
of these assets approximates to their fair value.
Cash on hand
Bank balances
Short-term deposits
Total
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Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand

2015

PanSALB

2014

2015

2014

12. Cash and cash equivalents (continued)
The credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand that are neither past due nor impaired
can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or historical information about counterparty default
rates:
Credit rating
F2
F3

13 638
-

5 090
461

11 751
-

4 634
-

13 638

5 551

11 751

4 634

70

70

70

70

-

70

-

70

Finished goods

1 255

1 296

-

-

Opening balance
Additions – finished goods
Issued (expensed) - consumables

1 296
(41)

751
545
-

-

-

Total

1 255

1 296

-

-

40
241
612
121

51
221
482
22
117

241
4
-

221
2
4
-

1 014

893

245

227

Cash and cash equivalents pledged as collateral
Securities held by Absa bank on investment account
Total financial assets pledged as collateral for
contingent liabilities
Terms and conditions
13. Inventories

14. Receivables from exchange transactions
Trade debtors
Deposits
Other receivables
Prepayments
Royalties receivable
Total

The receivables are not considered to be impaired unless specifically provided for. The risk exposure of receivables has
been disclosed in note 23.

Annual Report for 2014-15 Financial Year - PanSALB

85

PanSALB CONSOLIDATED

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand

2015

PanSALB

2014

2015

2014

15. Property, plant and equipment
Consolidated

2015
Cost

2014

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

Cost

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Lease improvement / Research
Donated Assets
Cell Phones
Leased switchboard
Leased photocopiers
Library books

580
1 373
3 064
2 824
71
9
717
506
171
29

(280)
(995)
(1 971)
(1 692)
(63)
(5)
(289)
(417)
(105)
(29)

300
378
1 093
1 132
8
4
428
89
66
-

787
1 373
3 018
3 076
71
9
717
506
171
123

(275)
(763)
(1 848)
(1 527)
(61)
(4)
(145)
(165)
(53)
(29)

512
610
1 170
1 549
10
5
572
341
118
94

Total

9 344

(5 846)

3 498

9 851

(4 870)

4 981

PanSALB

2015
Cost

2014

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

Cost

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Donated Assets
Cell Phones
Leased switchboard
Leased photocopiers
Library books

319
1 055
1 795
2 156
9
717
506
171
-

(150)
(709)
(1 065)
(1 295)
(5)
(289)
(417)
(105)
-

169
346
730
861
4
428
89
66
-

446
1 055
1 806
2 314
9
717
506
171
95

(207)
(616)
(953)
(1 303)
(4)
(145)
(165)
(53)
-

239
439
853
1 011
5
572
341
118
95

Total

6 728

(4 035)

2 693

7 119

(3 446)

3 673
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Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand

2015

PanSALB

2014

2015

2014

15. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Consolidated - 2015

Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Lease improvement /
Research
Donated Assets
Cell Phones
Leased switchboard
Leased photocopiers
Library books

Opening
balance
512
1 549
610
1 170
10

Difference

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

98
45
183
-

56
185
-

(41)
(68)
(38)
-

(265)
(446)
(232)
(407)
(2)

5
572
341
118
94

-

-

(94)

(1)
(144)
(252)
(52)
-

4 981

326

241

(241)

(1 801)

Depreciation

Impairment
loss

Impairment
loss
(4)
(4)
(8)

Total
300
1 132
378
1 093

428
89
66
3 498

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Consolidated - 2014

Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Lease improvements /
Research
Donated Assets
Cell phones
Leased switchboard
Leased photocopiers
Library Books

Opening
balance
607
1 660
736
709
11

Additions

Disposals

14
26
846
-

690
665
292
-

9
94

5 370

989

(16)
(16)

(109)
(136)
(126)
(365)
(1)
(4)
(118)
(324)
(174)
(1 357)

Total

(1)
(4)
-

512
1 549
610
1 170
10

(5)

5
572
341
118
94
4 981

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - PanSALB - 2015

Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Donated Assets
Cell Phones
Leased switchboard
Leased photocopiers
Library books

Opening
balance
239
1 011
439
853
5
572
341
118
95
3 673

Additions
148
-

(41)
(68)
(37)
(95)

(25)
(78)
(93)
(234)
(1)
(144)
(252)
(52)
-

Impairment
loss
(4)
(4)
-

148

(241)

(879)

(8)
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Figures in Rand thousand

2015

PanSALB

2014

2015

2014

15. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - PanSALB - 2014

Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Donated Assets
Cell phones
Leased switchboard
Leased photocopiers
Library Books

Opening
balance
259
1 126
533
349
6
690
665
292
-

Additions

3 920

Disposals

Depreciation

4
813
95

(16)
-

(24)
(113)
(94)
(290)
(1)
(118)
(324)
(174)
-

912

(16)

(1 138)

Impairment
loss

Total

(2)
(3)
-

239
1 011
439
853
5
572
341
118
95

(5)

3 673

16. Intangible assets
Consolidated

2015
Cost

Computer software - licences

596

PanSALB

(452)

Cost

144

Accumulated Carrying value
amortisation
672

2015
Cost

Computer software - licences

2014

Accumulated Carrying value
amortisation

(353)

339

2014

Accumulated Carrying value
amortisation
487

(333)

Cost

134

Accumulated Carrying value
amortisation
568

(333)

235

Reconciliation of intangible assets - Consolidated - 2015
Opening
balance
339

Computer software - licences

Additions

Amortisation
5

Total

(200)

144

Reconciliation of intangible assets - Consolidated - 2014

Computer software - licences

Opening
Amortisation
balance
458
(119)

Total

Opening
Amortisation
balance
235
(101)

Total

Opening
Amortisation
balance
349
(114)

Total

339

Reconciliation of intangible assets - PanSALB - 2015

Computer software - licences

134

Reconciliation of intangible assets - PanSALB - 2014

Computer software - licences
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STATEMENTS
Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand

2015

PanSALB

2014

2015

2014

17. Other financial assets
Designated at fair value
Investments
Investments consist of funds invested within the longterm investment pool of Stellenbosch University as well
as a fixed deposit held with Standard Bank. The fixed
deposit earns interests at a fixed rate of 8.53% per
annum, payable on 9 June 2017 (maturity date)

1 571

-

-

-

690

434

-

-

3 318

2 805

-

-

125

213

-

-

Stellenbosch University
This loan is unsecured and not subject to any fixed
terms of repayment. Interest is calculated at a floating
rate linked to the prime overdraft rate. The rate at yearend was 4.90% (2013: 4.90%)

1 867

3 270

-

-

University of Venda
The loan represents monies received by the university,
but not yet utilised by the TNLU. The loan bears no
interest and has no fixed repayment terms.

-

465

-

-

591

210

-

-

6 591

7 397

-

-

Total other financial assets

8 162

7 397

-

-

Non-current assets
Designated at fair value

1 571

-

-

-

Current assets
At amortised cost

6 591

7 397

-

-

Accruals
Leave and bonuses
Operating lease payables
Other payables
Trade payables

754
2 702
187
964
1 151

2 367
2 553
203
2 035
1 744

568
2 381
184
2
1 122

2 149
2 273
189
1 582
1 744

Total

5 758

8 902

4 257

7 937

At amortised cost
Rhodes University
The loan is unsecured and there are no fixed terms of
repayment
University of Pretoria
The loan is unsercured and there are no fixed terms of
repayment.
University of Fort Hare
The loan is unsecured and bears interest at variable
rates. There are no fixed terms of repayment.

North West University
The loan is unsecured and there are no fixed terms of
repayment.

18. Payables from exchange transactions
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Figures in Rand thousand

2015

PanSALB

2014

2015

2014

18. Payables from exchange transactions (continued)
The fair value of trade and other payables approximates their carrying amounts.
Leave and bonuses are classified as accruals in accordance with the policy adopted by PanSALB.
19. Finance lease obligations
Minimum lease payments due
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

410
-

274
392

410
-

274
392

410
(139)

666
(90)

410
(139)

666
(90)

Present value of minimum lease payments

271

576

271

576

Present value of minimum lease payments due
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

271
-

456
120

271
-

456
120

271

576

271

576

271

149
427

271

149
427

271

576

271

576

Less: future finance charges

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

It is the entity’s policy to lease photocopiers, cell phones and the switchboard under finance leases. These lease
obligations have been disclosed in note 21.
Interest rates are linked to prime at the contract date. All leases escalate at 15% p.a. and no arrangements have been
entered into for contingent rent.
The entity's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's charge over the leased assets. Refer note 15.
20. Employee benefit obligations
Post-retirement employee benefits
The Afrikaans NLU accounts for actuarially determined future medical and group life insurance benefits and provide for the
expected liability in the statement of financial position
The most recent valuation was done on 31 March 2015. The next valuation will be done on or before 31 March 2018. A medical
cost inflation rate of 8.4% (2014: 8.8%) and a discount rate of 8.6% (2014: 9.4%) were assumed. The average retirement age
was set at 60 years (2014: 60 years).
The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:
Carrying value
Present value of the defined benefit obligation - wholly
unfunded
Present value of the defined benefit obligation - partly or
wholly funded
Fair value of reimbursement rights
Other
Asset not recognised
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(4 898)

(4 989)

-

-

(106)

(105)

-

-

(450)
279
(488)

(371)
223
344

-

-

(5 663)

(4 898)

-

-
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand

2015

PanSALB

2014

2015

2014

21. Cash generated from operations
Surplus
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss on sale of assets and liabilities
Fair value adjustments
Impairment loss
Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities
Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Receivables from exchange transactions
Payables from exchange transactions
Unspent conditional grants and receipts

4 126

4 602

1 065
241
(114)
8
765

1 476
16
179
(91)

41
(121)
(3 352)
6 191

(676)
(92)
359
(237)

8 850

5 536

3 657

4 010

980
241
8
-

1 252
16
5
-

(18)
(3 928)
6 191

18
(156)
(237)

7 131

4 908

22. Operating lease arrangements
The entity as lessee
The entity has operating leases for offices over periods between 24 and 60 months as well as photocopiers and
switchboard that have been extended by 24 months at a nominal amount. At the statement of financial position date the
entity had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:
Minimum lease pay ments due
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

1 062
2 577

1 288
572

1 062
2 577

1 288
572

Total

3 639

1 860

3 639

1 860

23. Risk management
Maximum credit risk exposure
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and receivables. The entity only deposits cash with major
banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.
Securities of R 70, 000 are held by Absa bank on investment account.
Management evaluates credit risk relating to receivables on an ongoing basis. If debtors are independently rated, these
ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the debtor, taking
into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or
external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board.
Exposure to credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:
Receivables – unrated
Cash and equivalents: F2 and F3 – rating

9 183
13 638

8 290
5 551

Total

22 821

13 841
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2015

PanSALB

2014

2015

2014

23. Risk management (continued)
Credit quality of financial assets
The following analysis provides information about the entity’s exposure to credit risk:
Receivables
- Neither past due nor impaired
Neither past due nor impaired
Cash and equivalents
Neither past due nor impaired

9 183
-

8 290
-

13 638

5 551

Liquidity risk
The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk
through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.
Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the maturities and contractual cash flows of other financial liabilities which have been undiscounted.
Consolidated
At 31 March 2015
Payables from exchanged transactions
Finance lease obligations
Other Financial Liabilities
Retirement benefit obligation
At 31 March 2014
Payables from exchanged transactions
Finance lease obligations
Other Financial Liabilities
Retirement benefit obligation

Less than 1
year
6 197
97
543
-

Between 1
and 2 years

Between 2
and 5 years

Over 5 years

Less than 1
year
9 079
709
6
-

Between 1
and 2 years

Between 2
and 5 years

Over 5 years

6
5 663

120
936
4 898

936
-

-

-

Interest rate risk
As the entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, the entity’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.
24. Consolidation
The entity exercises control over the National Lexicography Units mentioned in note 25. The financial results of these
enterprises have been consolidated into the financial statements of Pan South African Language Board.
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2015

2014

PanSALB
2015

2014

25. Contingencies
PanSALB disregarded the employment Contract of 44 employees appointed during the turn around strategy. These
employees have instituted legal proceedings against PanSALB with the CCMA and Labour Court and the matter is stll in
progress
Legal firm appointed during the turnaround strategy has instituted legal proceedings against PanSALB and the matter is
still in progress
The litigations against PanSALB by the Senior Legal Advisor are still ongoing. Attempts to resolve this matter are currently
before the Board
Employees appointed before the turnaround strategy have instituted legal proceedings against the Minister of Arts and
Culture for appointing the Caretaker CEO and new employees. The matter is still in progress
PanSALB employees instituted litigation against PanSALB for payment of salary progression since 2008

There is a contingent liability that comprises the surplus at 31 March 2015. A request for retention of the anticipated surplus
was forwarded to National Treasury. To date, no approval has been obtained from National Treasury with regard to the
retention of the surplus.
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2015

2014

PanSALB
2015

2014

26. Related parties
National Department – Arts and culture - Department within the same sphere of government
Provincial Department – Sports, arts and culture - Department within the same sphere of government
Provincial Department - Sports, art and culture - Department within the same sphere of governement
National Lexicography Units – non-profit entities receiving grants from PanSALB
Chief Executive Officer – member of key management
Chief Financial Officer – member of key management
Statistics SA - Entity within the same sphere of government
Local Government - related as it is within the sphere of government
Gauteng Legislature - legislature within the same sphere of government
Related party balances
Other financial liabilities
Department of Arts and Culture

1 485

942

85 496
125
603

97 510
200
250
9
-

86 224

97 969

1 204

2 132

-

95

1 510
1 510
1 510
1 510
1 510
1 510
1 656
1 510
1 510
1 510
1 510

1 488
1 488
1 488
1 488
1 488
1 488
1 729
1 488
1 488
1 488
1 488

16 756

16 609

Related party transactions
Grants received from related parties
National Department – Arts and Culture
Provincial Department – Sports, Arts and Culture - Free State
Department of Arts and Culture - Mpumulanga
Statistics SA
Gauteng Legislature

Remuneration
Directors remuneration - NLUS
Donations received
University of Pretoria
Transfers and subsidies paid to the National Lexicography Units
National Lexicography Units
Bureau of the Woordeboek van die Afrikaanse Taal NPC
Dictionary Unit for South African English NPC
Iziko Lesihlathululi-Mezwi Sesindebele NPC
Isixhosa National Lexicography Unit
Isikhungo Sesichazamazwi Sesizulu
Sesiu sa Sesotho Lexicography Unit NPC
Sesotho Sa Leboa Dictionary Unit NPC
Setswana National Lexicography Unit NPC
Silulu Sesiswati Lexicography Unit NPC
Tshivenda National Lexicography Unit NPC
Xitsonga National Lexicography Unit NPC
Total
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PanSALB

2015

2014

2015

2014

Salary

Expense
allowances

Other
benefits

Total

26. Related parties (continued)
Senior Management remuneration 2015

Caretaker Chief Executive Officer - Mr M Zwane
(contract expired - June 2014)

324

130

111

565

Acting Chief Executive Officer - Ms K Mbele (July 2014
- 30 September 2014)
Executive Head Corporate Services - Ms K Mbele
Executive Head Mornitoring and Evaluation - Dr D
Thokoane
Executive Head Languages - Dr N Mali
Acting Chief Executive Officer - Adv Z Feni (appointed
01 November 2014 )
Acting Chief Financial Officer - Mr AV Mbilini

115

54

31

200

401
368

158
27

109
220

668
615

446
239

124
110

192
140

762
489

568

36

401

1 005

2 461

639

1 204

4 304

Total
Senior Management remuneration 2014

Salary
Caretaker Chief Executive Officer - Mr M Zwane
Chief Financial Officer - Ms M Myambo (resigned January 2014)
Acting Financial Officer - Mr AV Mbilini (appointed
February 2014)
Executive Head Languages - Mr N Jafta (resigned
august 2013)
Executive Head Corporate Services- Ms K Mbele
Acting Executive Head - Monitoring and Evaluation - Dr D
Thokoene
Executive Head Languages - Dr N Mali
Total
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222

Other
benefits
371
133

88

15

53

156

99

42

173

314

642
463

267
-

161
309

1 070
772

561

65

309

935

3 252

611

1 509

5 372

866
533

Expense
allowances

Total
1 237
888
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27. Reconciliation between budget and statement of financial performance
Reconciliation of budget surplus/deficit with the surplus/deficit in the statement of financial performance:
Net surplus per the statement of financial performance
Adjusted for:
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Loss on sale of assets
Finance costs
Finance lease payments
Capital assets purchased
Operating lease accrual
Interest received
Other income received
Administrative and other operating expenses variance
Staff costs variance
Transfers and subsidies variance
Prepayments
Government grants and subsidies

3 313

4 011

988
241
34
(305)
(148)
(6)
175
(22 622)
10 840
146
4
7 340

1 257
16
99
(448)
(818)
(59)
126
70
(11 575)
(11 824)
(790)
(15)
19 950

Total

-

28. Events after the reporting date
An advert for the position of the Chief Executive Officer has been placed and will be finalised by June 2015.
29. Impairment of financial assets
Except as disclosed in the annual financial statements, the entity is not aware of any other events or circumstances, which
will result in the impairment of financial assets for the year ended 31 March 2015.
30. Key sources of estimate uncertainty and judgements
In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgement are inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these
estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:
The determination of the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment; and intangible assets with finite
useful lives. The useful lives and residual values of assets are based on management’s estimation of the asset’s condition,
expected condition at the end of the period of use, its current use, expected future use and the entity’s expectations about
the availability of finance to replace the asset at the end of its useful life. In evaluating the how the condition and use of the
asset informs the useful life and residual value management considers the impact of technology and minimum service
requirements of the assets.
The entity reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely
independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred,
estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets.
Provisions were recognised and management determined an estimate based on the information available.
Contingencies recognised require estimates and judgements made by management and is normally the amount that the
entity would rationally pay to settle the obligation or to transfer it to a third party at thereporting date. Management's
judgements are based on similar transactions and, in some cases, reports from independent experts. Any events after the
reporting date are considered and, where relevant, included. Contingent assets are assessed on a continuous basis and
when inflows of resources become virtually certain the related asset is recognised in the notes to the annual financial
statements.
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2014

2015
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31. Other financial liabilities
At amortised cost
Department of Arts and Culture
Salary recovery for Care-taker-CEO
Current liabilities
At amortised cost

1 381

942

1 381

942

1 381

942

1 381

942

129
5 713
349

-

129
5 713
349

-

6 191

-

6 191

-

90

427

-

-

32. Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:
Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Department of Arts and Culture - Mpumalanga
Lottory Fund
Gauteng Legislature

33. Cost of sales
Sale of goods
Cost of goods sold
34. Change in accounting estimate
Property, plant and equipment
The useful life of Computer equipment and furniture and fittings was reviewed on 1 April 2014. In the current period
management have revised the Commputer equipment from 6 - 5 years and Furniture and fittings from 17 to 20 years.
The effect of this revision hasdecreased Computer equipments by R85,026 and Furnitutre and fittings has increased by
R3,725.00 he impact on tax is………………..
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35. Prior period errors
The following errors identified have been corrrected restrospectively and the comparative figures have been restated
accordingly:
- Accruals for the years ended 31 March 2014 were incomplete for PanSALB when certain expenditure items were
recorded on the actual payment date instead of the date when goods were supplied or the services rendered.
- Overstated accruals for the year ended 31 March 2014 were reversed
- A full fixed asset verification was performed during the financial year and as a result Computer equipment -Pland and
Machinery and Office equipment as a results assets with a cost price of less than R1,000.00 were accounted for and
assets erroniously impaired were revised
- PPE finance leased assets and donated Assets including Cell-phones were recognised accordingly
- Errors identified in the leave provision calculations was corrected for the year ended 31 March 2014

The total net effect of the prior period error(s) is as follows:
Statement of Financial Position
Property Plant and Equipment
Finance leased obligations
Payables from exchange transactions
Accumulated deficit - 31 March 2013

-

-

-

901
575
(3 990)
(869)

Statement of Financial Performance
Staff costs
Operating Expenses
Depreciation
Finance costs
Impairment

-

-

-

(288)
(3 679)
505
99
(20)
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36. Going concern
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. The
entity has committed funds from National Treasury for the following 3 years. Management has embarked on a strategic
planning exercise and developed a fundraising strategy; which includes identifying new avenues for generating additional
revenue.
The entity will also continue providing the NLUs with funding from its committed funds in accordance with the PanSALB Act.
37. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Interest charged on late payments to suppliers

-

-

604

61

The above matter has been investigated and the interest was incurred as a result of inadequate cashflows available during
during the year to settle suppliers when they became due. No futher displinary steps were taken

38. Irregular expenditure
Opening balance
Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year
Add: irregular expenditure prior years

-

-

43 363
8 662
-

14 876
27 071
1 416

-

-

52 025

43 363

-

-

8 662
43 363

27 071
16 292

-

-

52 025

43 363

Analy sis of expenditure awaiting condonation per age classification
Current year
Prior years

Details of irregular expenditure for the current year (not condoned)
Legal consultants
Travel and banqueting for meetings held
Consumables
ICT
HR Consultants
Projects Expenses

1 696
758
1
1 803
1 810
2 594
8 662
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AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

BOARD REMUMERATION
The new board members for PanSALB were appointed during March 2014 and are awaiting their inauguration.
The following directors were appointed for both years ending 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015 at the undermentioned
NLUs:
Bureau of the Woordeboek van die Afrikaanse Taal NPC
- Prof. A Schoonwinkel (Chairman)
- Dr W .F. Botha
- Dr L.E. Combrink
- Prof. L.G. de Stadler
- Prof. R.H. Gouws
- Mr. H.A.J. Lombard
- Dr. M. Pienaar
- Mr. R.A. Stevens
Dictionary Unit for South African English NPC
- S.E.H Driver
- M.M. Hackley
- T.L Amos
- R.D. Adendorff
- M. Hendricks
- R.H. Kaschula
-J.D. Linnegar
- E.J. W olvaart
Iziko Lesihlathululi-Mezwi Sesindebele NPC
- Mr. P.J. Masilela (Chairperson)
- Mr. D.S. Masanabo (Deputy Chairperson)
- Mr. L.T. Mnguni
- Mr. J. Mthimunye
- Mr. P.G. Mabena
- Mr. V.S. Ndala
- Ms. K.S. Mahlangu (Editor in Chief)
Isixhosa National Lexicography Unit
- Dr. M. Jadezweni (Chairperson)
- Dr. P.N. Mkonto
- Prof. D.N Jafta
- Dr. O.S. Dzingwa (resigned)
- Mr. M. Tanda
- Dr. S.S. Mdaka
- Ms. N. Tyolwana (resigned)
- Dr. T. Nsthinga (resigned)
Isikhungo Sesichazamazwi Sesizulu NPC
- Justice S.J. Ngwenya (Chairman)
- Mr. M.A. Simelane (Financial Officer)
- Prof. A.M Maphumulo
- Dr. M.O. Mtshali
- Mr. B.N. Mchunu
- Ms. L. Makhubu (Deputy Chairperson)
- Mr. M. Mbatha (CEO and Editor in Chief)
- Ms. L. Mahonga
- T.R.G Ntombela
- Mr. N.M. Dubazane
- Ms. T. Dlamini
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Sesiu sa Sesotho Lexicography Unit NPC
- Prof. M.A. Moleleki
- Prof. H.M. Thipa
- Mr. C.M. Mahase
- Mr. M.J. Motsapi
Sesotho Sa Leboa Dictionary Unit NPC
- Dr. S.J. Chokoe
- Mrs. K.M. Makgopa
- Ms. M.K. Malepe
- Dr. M.V. Mojela
- Dr. D.N. Lekganyane
- Dr. S. Mogale
- Mr. S.J Dolamo
- Mr J.R. Matlala
Setswana National Lexicography Unit NPC
- N.J. Phalatse (Chairperson)
- D.J. Molefe (Deputy Chairperson)
- G.B Mareme (Editor in Chief)
- R.D. Paadi
- B.D. Sebolao
- K.A. Mhlongo
- G.M. Tlaletsi
Silulu Sesiwati Lexicography Unit NPC
- P.M. Lubisi
- A.D. Shongwe
- J.J. Thwala
- B.V. Mbongela
- L.R. Ntsane
- O.A. Bhiya
-- J.P. Shongwe
Tshivenda Naltional Lexicography Unit NPC
- Prof. M.J Mafela
- Adv. K.S. Negota
- Mr. S.L. Thsikota
- Prof. N.M. Musehane
- Mr. T.E. Maphangwa
- Dr. I.P. Demana
- Mr. N.C. Netshisaulu
- Mr. A.S. Tshithukhe
Xitsonga National Lexicography Unit
- Mrs. N.C. Shilote (Chairperson)
- Mr. M.J. Baloyi (Deputy Chairperson)
- Mr. M.J Hlongwane
- Mrs. M.L. Bilankulu
- Mr. S.E. Mushwana
- Mr. X.E. Mabaso
- Mr. S.W .T. Machumele
- Prof. N.C.P. Golele
- Mr. H.T. Mashele (Executive Director)
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